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Harry Kim Michael Yee
Mayor Director
Daryn Arai

Deputy Director
West Hawai‘i Office e East Hawai‘i Office
74-5044 Ane Keohokalole Hwy °ce 101 Pauahi Street, Suite 3
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Phone (808) 323-4770 Phone (808) 961-8288
Fax (808) 327-3563 PLANNING DEPARTMENT Fax (808) 961-8742

October 2, 2018

Ms. Fanlan Cheng Brenman
78-6824 Mamalahoa Highway B OCT -9 A & 02
Holualoa, HI 96725

Dear Ms. Cheng Brenman:

Special Permit No. SP79-330 (LUC 407)
Applicant: Dr. Minolu R. Cheng

Request: Establishment of a Medical Office
Subject: Revocation of Special Permit

Tax Map Key: 7-8-007:032

This letter is in response to your email and letter dated September 27, 2018, requesting that the
subject Special Permit be revoked based on the reasons stated within.

Based on the preceding and in accordance with Planning Commission Rule 6-5, LUC 407 is
hereby revoked.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Jeff Darrow at 961-8158.

Sincerely,

% éICHAEL YEE

Planning Director

JWD:klt
P\wpwin60\Jeff\Letters\Revocation\LCheng-Brenman-SPP407-Revocation.doc

cc w/copy of letter:  Gilbert Bailado, GIS Section
Daniel E. Orodenker, Executive Officer, Land Use Commission v~

www.hiplanningdept.com Hawai'i County is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer lanning@hawaiicounty.gov
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September 27, 2018

Michael Yee

Planning Director

County of Hawai'i Planning Department
101 Pauahi Street, Suite 3

Hilo, HI 86720

planning@hawaiicounty.gov

Re: Special Permit No. 407 for TMK: (3) 7-8-007:032

Dear Director Yee,

In accordance with Planning Commission Rule 8-11(a), | am writing to request the revocation of
Special Permit No. 407 for TMK: (3) 7-8-007:032.

My father Dr. Minolu Reen Cheng, the original applicant of the special permit, passed away on
November 27, 2015.

Since his death, there has been no medical facility or any commercial activity of any kind
operating at this site.

Since 2008, the site has been owned by two trusts: the Minolu Reen Cheng Trust, dated
September 10, 2008 and the Mei Yeh Cheng Trust, dated September 10, 2008.

Upon review and approval, | would like to request a hard copy of the revocation letter be sent to
the mailing address below and a digital copy to my email address.

Sincerely,

Jlrftin Chacp (5\tarmm—

Fanlan Cheng Brenman

Trustee, Minolu Reen Cheng Trust, dated September 10, 2008
Trustee, Mei Yeh Cheng Trust, dated September 10, 2008
78-6824 Mamalahoa Hwy

Holualoa, HI 96725

fanian . brenmanfamail.com
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l Governor
DEPAF~* =« ' PLANNING

AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT g CHARLESCV:'; DUKE

. airman

e ® SHINICHI NAKAGAWA

LAND USE COMMISSION

Vice Chairman

-~ Suite 1795, Pacific Trade Center, 190 S. King Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

June 6, 1979

Mr. Sidney Fuke

Planning Director

Hawaii Planning Department
25 Aupuni Street

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Dear Mr. Fuke:

Subject: SP79-330 - MINOLU R. CHENG

In reference to our letter to you dated

February 23, 1979 , enclosed is a copy of the

Decision and Order on SP79-330 for your information

and records.

' Sincerely,

Encl.
cc: Minolu R. Cheng

COMMISSION MEMBERS:

James Carras
Colette Machado
Shinsei Miyasato

Mitsuo Oura
George Pascua
Carol Whitesell
Edward Yanai

GORDAN FURUTAN:
Executive Officer

!



BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF HAWAII

In the Matter of the ) SP79-330
Petition for Special Permit )
of MINOLU R. CHENG ) MINOLU R. CHENG
)
)

This' is to certify that this is a true and correct copy of the
Decision and Order on filz in the office of the State Land Use

Commission, Honolulu, Hawaii.
~L_”’ /) 'JL bm M«,‘
Date /xecuﬁve?/ﬁcterf

DECISION AND ORDER




BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF HAWAII

In the Matter of the SP79-330
Petition for Special Permit
of MINOLU R. CHENG FINDINGS OF FACT,

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND

DECISION AND ORDER

Nt Nt e e

The Land Use Commission of the State of Hawaii,
having duly considered the entire record in the above entitled
matter, makes the following findings of fact and conclusions

of law.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Petition for Special Permit was filed by
MINOLU R. CHENG to allow the establishment of a medical office
on approximately .934 acre of land situated within the State
Land Use Rural District at Keauhou lst, North Kona, Hawaii,
Tax Map Key 7-8-07: 32.

2. The subject property is located between the
Kuakini Highway and the old Mamalahoa Highway, approximately
400 feet south of the Keauhou School.

3. The proposed medical office would be located on
the ground floor of a proposed two-story structure. The upper
story would be used by the petitioner as his residence.

4. Each floor of the structure would have an area
of 2,800 square feet. Plans submitted by the Petitioner indicate
that the ground floor would have a doctor's office, a reception
and waiting area, examining rooms, a guest room, restrooms,
and a 1,200 square foot area designated as additional professional

office space. The second floor living area would consist of



two bedrooms, a den, a living room, a dining room, a kitchen,
a laundry room and two bathrooms.

5. The Petitioner has indicated that 20 parking stalls
would be provided for the medical office.

6. The County of Hawaii's General Plan Land Use
Pattern Allocation Guide Map designates the property low density
urban. The site is presently zoned residential agricultural
one-half acre (RA-.5a).

7. The Land Study Bureau's overall master productivity
soil rating for agricultural use is Class "C" or "Fair" for
soils of the subject property.

8. Surrounding land uses include vacant areas, single
family dwellings, a quarry and diversified agricultural activities.

9. Access to the site would be directly off of the
old Mamalahoa Highway. This roadway has a right-of-way width of
between 30 and 50 feet, and a pavement width of between 18 to 20
feet.

10. The Petitioner has in part stated that the proposed
use of the subject site would not adversely affect surrounding
properties nor unreasonably burden public agencies to provide
services and facilities.

11. The County Department of Public Works commented
that construction of the medical office would increase traffic
to the Mamalahoa Highway. The department further noted that
this roadway is in poor condition.

12. The State Department of Transportation had no
objections to the request but stated that access to the Belt
Highway would not be permitted.

13. The State Department of Health deferred comments

on the proposed use until ground water concerns relative to the



Kahaluu Shaft could be investigated.

14. The State Department of Education, Police Depart-
ment, U.S.D.A. Soil Consérvation Service, Department of Parks
and Recreation, State Department of Agriculture and Fire Depart-
ment had no objections to the granting of the Special Permit.

15. The Hawaii County Planning Department recommended
approval of the application for Special Permit.

16. The Hawaii County Planning Commission conducted
a public hearing on the application for Special Permit on
November 16, 1978. At that time, the Petitioner, Minolu Cheng,
testified in support of the request. Under public testimony,
Mr. Leon Sterling, Ms. Esther Delaireé, Ms. Lily Kong, Ms. Ann Madawi
and Mrs. Ronald Kahaliononi spoke in opposition to the request
because of traffic concerns. Also under public testimony,

Mrs. Carol Sasaki testified in support of the permit request,
stating that the proposed facility would have sufficient parking

and would not create traffic problems.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. "Unusual and reasonable" uses other than those
which are permitted in a Rural District may be permitted by
Special Permit pursuant to HRS Chapter 205-6, and State Land
Use Commission District Regulation, Part V.

2. The approval of the subject request will be
consistent with the Land Use Law and Regulations. The purpose
of the Land Use Law and Regulations is to preserve, protect and
encourage the development of lands in the State for those uses
to which these lands are best suited in the interest of the
public health and welfare of the people of the State of Hawaii.

The subject property is situated within the State Land Use



Rural District. Areas within this district consists of small
farms and/or low density residential uses where "city-like"
cqncentrations of people} structures, streets, and urban level
of services are absent, and where small farms are intermixed
with the low density residential lots. Keauhou Village, which
encompasses the subject property, includes single family dwellings,
agricultural activities, a store, service station, and the old
Keauhou School site.

3. The proposed medical facility will be small in
scale, designed in keeping with the low density character of
the area, and will provide a necessary service to the community.
Medical health services are an essential part of community life
and its ready availability to the residents in the area is
especially valuable in treating emergency situations. The proposed
medical facility can become an integral part of the rural community.
The medical facility also includes a residential unit for the
petitioner. This "live-in" doctor situation will assume that
activities on the subﬂect property will be conducted in a manner
consistent with the residential character of the area. Based on
the nature and scale of the proposed development, it is determined
that it will be ancillary to community needs, compatible with
the rural character of the area, and consistent with the intent
of the State Land Use Rural designation for Keauhou Village.

4. The proposed use will not unreasonably burden
public agencies in providing public utilities and facilities.
All essential utilities are available to the subject property.
Access to the subject property would be via the Mamalahoa High-
way which connects with Kuakini Highway approximately 1,000 feet
north of the subject area. In this vicinity, the Mamalahoa

Highway has a variable pavement width of 18 to 20 feet and is



currently in poor condition. Plans for resurfacing this portion
of the Mamalahoa Highway is programmed for next year. Given

the planned improvement of Mamalahoa Highway, its relatively
uncongested traffic condition, and the scale of the proposed
use, it is not anticipated that the approval of the subject
request will create a traffic problem in the area.

5. The proposed use is not anticipated to adversely
affect surrounding properties. Due to the relatively small
size and character of the proposed medical fadility, it is not
anticipated to generate unusual amounts of traffic, noise or
adverse visual impact.

6. The use deséribed in the Petition is an unusual
and reasonable use pursuant to HRS Chapter 205-6, and State

Land Use Commission District Regulations, Part V.

DECISION AND ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Special Permit Number 79-330
for the establishmen£ of a medical office on approximately .934
acre of land situated within the State Land Use Rural District
at Keauhou lst, North Kona, Hawaii, Tax Map Key 7-8-07: 32, be
approved subject to the following conditions: S

1. The use of the medical facility shall be limited
to one (1) doctor and his or her staff, and (1) dwelling unit.

2. That the residential unit can only be occupied by
the doctor utilizing the medical facility.

3. That a minimum of fifteen (15) parking stalls shall
be provided on-site.

4. That the design of any and all structures shall be

consistent with the rural-residential character of the area.



5. That no direct access off Kuakini Highway shall
be permitted. All access shall be off the Mamalahoa- Highway.

6. That the blan approval process shall be complied
with. The petitioner, or his authorized representative, shall
submit plans for plan approval within one (1) year from the
effective date of the Special Permit. Construction shall commence
within one (1) year from the receipt of final plan approval and
shall be completed within two (2) years thereafter.

7. That the Special Permit shall be recorded in the
Bureau of Conveyances within 60 days of its effective date.

8. Should the use of the property change from the
proposed medical-residential use, the Special Permit shall
automatically become null and void.

9. That all other applicable rules, regulations and
requirements shall be complied with.

10. That should any of the foregoing conditions not
be met, the Special Permit may be deemed null and void.
DATED: M , Hawaii, jfl/u,, 20, /479 )

LAND USE COMMISéiON

w DL A

C. W. DUKE
Chairman and Commissioner

By .
AMES R. CARRAS
Commissioner

HINSEI MIYASATO
Commissioner

By




By é;22561é7:i4—1—;~—q;22»r-¢——

T MITSUO OURA

Commissioner

Sy 2 Ravca

By
GEORGE R. PASCUA
Commissioner

By Cﬂk4494§§?4£AZL224"54:£
CAROL B. WHITESELL
Commissioner
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P.O., STATE AND ZIP CODE

Kailua-Kona, H 96740

POSTAGE $ .4
CERTIFIED FEE 80 ¢

@ N

g SPECIAL DELIVERY ¢k

o | [RESTRICTED DELIVERY ¢ 3

o

o | £ | 12 | sHow 0 wHom aND DATE !

Elele )

5 = DELIVERED 49 B

2 o )

= | & | 9 | SHOW T0 WHOM, DATE, AND .

B | 5| »= | ADDRESS OF DELIVERY

\ g o I

£E=

— | 2 | 3 | SHOW TO WHOM AND DATE =

= | & | 82 | DELIVERED WITH RESTRICTED =

B | S | = [DElNERY =

=

o 2 | SHOW TO WHOM, DATE AND O

o £ | ADDRESS OF DELIVERY WITH =

o | RESTRICIED DELIVERY =)

o
0
fas]
=
2
@«




- STICK POSTAGE STAMPS TO ARTICLE TO COVER FIRST CLASS POSTAGE,

CERTIFIED MAIL FEE, AND CHARGES FOR ANY SELECTED OPTIONAL SERVICES. (see front)
A J'ou want this receipt postmarked, stick the gummed stub on the left portion of the address
si

ide of the article, leaving the receipt attached, and present the article at a post office service
window or hand it to your rural carrier. (no extra charge)

If you do not want this receipt postmarked, stick the gummed stub on the left portion of the
address side of the article, date, detach and retain the receipt, and mail the article.

If you want a return receipt, write the certified-mail number and your name and address on a
return receipt card, Form 3811, and attach it to the front of the article by means of the gummed
ends if space permits. Otherwise, afix to back of article. Endorse front of article RETURN RECEIPT
REQUESTED adjacent to the number.

If you want delivery restricted to the addressee, or to an authorized agent of the addressee,
endorse RESTRICTED DELIVERY on the front of the article.

Enter fees for the services requested in the appropriate spaces on the front of this receipt. If
return receipt is requested, check the applicable blocks in Item 1 of Form 3811.

Save this receipt and present it if you make inquiry.

v¢ GPO 1977 -239-172
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@ SENDER: Complete items 1, 2, and 3.
Add your address in the “RETURN TO" space on
reverse.

1. The following service is requested (check one).
[X] Show to whom and date delivered. .. .......
[[] Show to whom, date, and address of delivery. .__¢
[[] RESTRICTED DELIVERY

Show to whom and date delivered
[] RESTRICTED DELIVERY.
Show to whom, date, and address of delivery . §_—__

(CONSULT POSTMASTER FOR FEES)

2. ARTICLE ADDRESSED TO:

DR. MINOLU R. CHENG

3. ARTICLE DESCRIPTION:

REGISTERED NO. CERTIFIED NO. INSURED NO.

179557

I (Always obtain signature of addressee or agent)

SIGNATUR/E 0O fﬁ@ D Authorized agent
(< ' b

R G

4. ~

I have received the article descnbed above.

5 P _\‘\j‘;;:"”“‘

5. ADDRESS (Complete only if roqu01 ted) V2o

g 11911( / /

6. UNABLE TO DELIVER BECAUSE:

Yr GPO: 1978-272-382

SP79-330 - MINOLU R. CHENG




UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
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NALTY FOR PRIVATE
SENDER INSTRUCTIONS Bl grongliales Mt sl
Print your name, address, and ZIP Code in the space below. OF POSTAGE, $300
« Complete items 1,2, and 3 on the reverse. : DTN
« Attach to front of article if space permits. Otherwise U.S.MAIL
=

affix to back of article.
« Endorse article “Return Receipt Requested” adja-
cent to number.

RETURN State of Hawaii

" LAND USE COMMISSION
Suite 1795, Pacific Trade Center
190 South King Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(Name of Sender)

(Street or P. O. Box)

(City, State, and ZIP Code)
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NO INSURANCE COVERAGE PROVIDED—
NOT FOR INTERNATIONAL MAIL

(See Reverse)
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SENT TO
IDNEY FUKE
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Hilo, Hawaii 96720[9
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STICK POSTAGE STAMPS TO ARTICLE TO COVER FIRST CLASS POSTAGE,
CERTIFIED MAIL FEE, AND CHARGES FOR ANY SELECTED OPTIONAL SERVICES. (see front)

If dvou want this receipt postmarked, stick the gummed stub on the left portion of the address
side of the article, leaving the receipt attached, and present the article at a post office service
window or hand it to your rural carrier. (no extra charge)

If you do not want this receipt postmarked, stick the gummed stub on the left portion of the
address side of the article, date, detach and retain the receipt, and mail the article.

If you want a return receipt, write the certified-mail number and your name and address on a
return receipt card, Form 3811, and attach it to the front of the article by means of the gummed
ends if space permits. Otherwise, afix to back of article. Endorse front of article RETURN RECEIPT
REQUESTED adjacent to the number.

If you want delivery restricted to the addressee, or to an authorized agent of the addressee,
endorse RESTRICTED DELIVERY on the front of the article.

Enter fees for the services requested in the appropriate spaces on the front of this receipt. If
return receipt is requested, check the applicable blocks in Item 1 of Form 3811.

Save this receipt and present it if you make inquiry.
Y GPO 1977 —239-172
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@ SENDER: Complete items 1, 2, and 3.

Add your address in the “RETURN TO” space on
reverse. '

1. The fatlowing service is requested (check one).
] Show to whom and date delivered. .... ... .. ——l
[] Show to whom, date, and address of delivery. .___¢
[[] RESTRICTED DELIVERY
Show to whom and date delivered..... .. ... el
D RESTRICTED DELIVERY.
Show to whom, date, and address of delivery. $—__

(CONSULT POSTMASTER FOR FEES)

2. ARTICLE ADDRESSED TO:

SIDNEY FUKE

3. ARTICLE DESCRIPTION:

REGISTERED NO. CERTIFIED NO. INSURED NO.

| 170556

1 (Always obtain si'gnmn of uddnm. or agent)

I have received the article described above.
SIGNATURE [0 Addressee [0 Authorized agent

DATE OF DELIVERY

cH 77 ; e

5. ADDRESS (Cor‘vploto only if requested) i:: 4
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF HAWAITI

In the Matter of the Petition SP79-330
for Special Permit of
MINOLU R. CHENG

MINOLU R. CHENG

S N N e N S

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the Land Use
Commission's Decision and Order was served upon the follow-
ing by certified mail:

SIDNEY FUKE, Planning Director

Hawaii Planning Department

25 Aupuni Street

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

DR. MINOLU R. CHENG
P. O. Box 879
Kailua-Kona, Hawaii 96740

DATED: Honolulu, Hawaii, this 6th day of June, 1979.

G AN Y. TANI
ecutive/Officer



s :y i i
minion votad t.o appmva a apecial ?ami.t réquant by mu
“R.Cheng (SP79-330) to ‘allow th Mt.abl@smnt of a ‘medic
office on appmfmataly 2 acre of | <withi







e ’qu;;bmic rDevolépmanﬁ
sggt.a of Bawaii |
King'

38

cmio;' X




STATE OF HAWAII
LAND USE COMMISSION

Minutes of Meeting

Conference Room, 9th Floor voved
Kamamalu Building APP g 2 ,qﬁ
250 South King Street Au_guat /
Honolulu, Hawaii

February 21, 1979 - 9:30 a.m.

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Charles Duke, Chairman
Shinichi Nakagawa, Vice Chairman
James Carras
Shinsei Miyasato
Mitsuo Oura
George Pascua
Carol Whitesell
Edward Yanai

COMMISSIONER ABSENT: Colette Machado

STAFF PRESENT: ~ Gordan Furutani, Executive Officer
Daniel Yasui, Planner
Allan Kawada, Deputy Attorney General
Dora Horikawa, Chief Clerk

Ray Russell, Court Reporter
Bénjamin Matsubara, Consultant

Chairman Duke announced that the Commission will go into
executive session later today to discuss a personnel matter;
also that the order of the agenda will be shifted.

ACTION

A78-442 - MITSUGI & FUSAKO YAMAMURA

In the matter of the boundary amendment petition by
Mitsugi and Fusako Yamamura, Docket A78-442, a hearing was held
on December 5, 1978 by Mr. Benjamin Matsubara, Hearing Officer.
Based on his findings and conclusions, it was recommended by
Mr. Matsubara that the petition be approved since the request
was reasonable, non-violative of Section 205-2 of the Hawaii
Revised Statutes, and consistent with the Interim Statewide
Land Use Guidance Policy.

Commissioner Miyasato moved to approve Docket A78-442,
which was seconded by Commissioner Carras. The motion was
unanimously carried.



Minutes - February 21, 1979 ~4~

Chairman Duke added that staff also solicit clarification
of condition No. 5 regarding the tolling of time.

It was announced that action on SP79-329 will be deferred
until March 20, 1979.

Vv5P79-330 - MINOLU R. CHENG
APPLICATION TO ALLOW THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A MEDICAL OFFICE AT
KEAUHOU 1ST, NORTH KONA, HAWAIT

Following a presentation of the staff memorandum on the
subject application by staff planner, Commissioner Oura moved
to approve the Special Permit, subject to the conditions imposed
by the Hawaii County Planning Commission. It was seconded by
Commissioner Pascua and unanimously passed.

SP79-331 - STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
APPLICATION TO ALLOW THE CONTINUED USE OF THREE SCHOOL SITES
AT HONAUNAU, HOOKENA AND KOHALA

Mr. Daniel Yasui described the property involved in the
petition and presented the staff memorandum.

It was noted by the planner that basically the request
was to legitimize a use that is already existing and no improve-
ments were planned at the present time.

Commissioner Carras moved that the request be approved,
subject to the conditions imposed by the Hawaii County Planning
Commission, which was seconded by Commissioner Oura.

Commissioner Whitesell moved to amend the motion by adding
a condition that "the Kohala School site come in for a boundary
amendment within two years". There were no objections from the
maker and seconder of the original motion. The motion was carried.

The motion on the floor, and as amended, was unanimously
approved.

SP79-332 - STANLEY S. SHIMIZU
APPLICATION TO ALLOW THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A 50' X 60' FREEZER/
OFFICE BUILDING AT SOUTH KONA, HAWAIT

A summary of the staff memorandum was presented by Mr. Yasui.

Commissioner Oura moved to approve SP79-332, subject to the
conditions imposed by the Hawaii County Planning Commission.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Carras and uwnanimously
approved.



STATE OF HAWAII

LAND USE COMMISSION

VOTE RECORD

ITEM SP79-330 - MINOLU R. CHENG, M.D. DATE

February 21, 1979

pLACE DPED Conference Room TIME

9:30 a.m.

oonolfulu, Hawalil

NAME YES NO ABSTAIN | ABSENT
MACHADO, COLETTE 2
WHITESELL, CAROL A
PASCUA, GEORGE R. %

MIYASATO, SHINSEI X
CARRAS, JAMES B
NAKAGAWA, SHINICHI X
OURA, MITSUO X
YANAI, EDWARD. X
DUKE, CHARLES" : X

Comments: I move that we approve SP79-330,

subject to the conditions

imposed by the Hawaii County Planning Commission.




STATE OF HAWAII
LAND USE COMMISSION

TO: Land Use Commission February 21, 1979
FROM: Staff

SUBJECT: SP79-330 - Minolu R. Cheng

The petitioner, Minolu R. Cheng, is requesting a Special
Permit to allow the establishment of a medical office on
approximately .934 acre of land situated within the State Land
Use Rural District at Keauhou lst, North Kona, Hawaii, Tax Map
Key 7-8-07: 32. The subject property is located between
Kuakini Highway and the old Mamalahoa Highway, approximately
400 feet south of the Keauhou School at Keauhou lst, North
Kona (see County Exhibit R-1).

The proposed medical office would be located on the ground
floor of a proposed two-story structure. The upper story would
be used by the petitioner as his residence. Each floor would
have an area of 2,800 square feet. According to the plans
submitted, the ground floor would have a doctor's office, a
reception and waiting area, examining rooms, a guest room,
restrooms, and a 1,200 square foot area designated as additional
professional office space. The second floor living area would
consist of two bedrooms, a den, a living room, a dining room,

a kitchen, a laundry room and two bathrooms. The plans also
show that twenty (20) parking stalls would be provided.

In support of the request, the petitioner has in part
stated the following:

"This location is in the center of West Hawaii and right
on the Keauhou Scenic Point overlooking the beautiful
Kona Surf Hotel and Keauhou Country Club and Golf Course...

"Presently, the land zone 1is residential and agricultural.
There is an old house being torn down and getting ready
for a new one.

"The land is not contradictious to the land use law and
regulation as the building is going to be a medical
office. The building will benefit most of the sur-
rounding properties and the entire community as well.
There will be no unreasonable burden to public agencies
to provide any other than the pre-existing Kuakini
Highway as an entrance for emergency use and no exit to
the Kuakini Highway as planned. No sewers, water,



drainage, school improvement, police and fire protection
is needed other than pre-existing. There are no unusual
conditions, trends and needs that will affect the
district boundaries and regulations.

"The proposed use will not substantially alter or change
the essential character of the land as we will make use
of the highest point and not alter the basic character
of the land. The proposed use of the land definitely
involves public welfare as it is going to serve the
people in the community as well as persons other than
in the community, such as the tourists.

"At the present time, my proposed office will be having
only one doctor and one associated personnel. As for
future development, on the proposed plan, a proposed
pharmacy or another professional office (for example:
Lawyer, Accountant, or another physician) is being
considered on office #2 .....

"My practice will be Acute Family Care and General Surgery
which will benefit most of the trauma cases in the area.

"Only limited office laboratory work will be performed and
I will not have a complete commercial type of laboratory
setup.

"The second floor of my proposed office building will be
used for a residence as per plan submitted."

The county of Hawaii's General Plan Land Use Pattern
Allocation Guide Map designates the property low density urban.
County Zoning is Residential Agricultural-one-half acre (RA-.5a).

The Land Study Bureau's overall master productivity soil
rating for agricultural use is Class "C" or "Fair" for soils of
the subject property.

The soils of the subject property are of the Honuaulu
series which consists of well drained, silty clay loams that
formed in volcanic ash. A representative profile has a surface
layer of very dark silty clay loam about 9 inches thick, while
the subsoil is dark brown cobbly and stony silty clay loam
about 28 inches. The substratum is 'a'a lava. Permeability is
rapid, runoff is slow and the erosion hazard is slight.

Access to the subject property would be directly off of
the old Mamalahoa Highway. The plans submitted also show an
emergency entrance from Kuakini Highway. The old Mamalahoa
Highway has a right-of-way which varies between thirty (30) and
fifty (50) feet. It has an 18 to 20-foot pavement width.

.



Surrounding land uses include vacant areas, single family
dwellings, a quarry and diversified agricultural activities.

Pertinent comments from governmental agencies:

1. DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY

The County Department of Water Supply noted the following
with regard to the permit request:

"Based on the floor layout of the subject medical office,
it appears that water usage for this facility should be
no greater than that required for normal single-family
residential use.

"There is an 8-inch waterline along Mamalahoa Highway
that will be able to service this facility."

2. STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Department of Transportation provided the following
comment:

"We have no objections on the proposed action but no
access shall be permitted off the Hawaii Belt Road,
Project No. F-011-1(4). The parcel does not have any
access rights off the Hawaii Belt Road."

3 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

The County Department of Public Works noted the following
with regard to the permit application:

"The construction of this office would increase traffic
to the Mamalahoa Highway which is in poor condition."

4. STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The State Health Department noted the following:

"We would like to defer our comments until our field staff
investigates ground water concerns relative to the
Kahaluu shaft."

Other cooperating agencies, including the State Department
of Education, Police Department, U.S.D.A. Soil Conservation
Service, Department of Parks and Recreation, State Department
of Agriculture and Fire Department had no objections to the
permit application.

The Hawaii County Planning Commission conducted a public
hearing on the Special Permit on November 16, 1978. At that

-



time, the petitioner, Minolu Cheng, testified in support of
the request. Under public testimony, Mr. Leon Sterling,

Ms. Esther Delaries, Ms. Lily Kong, Ms. Ann Madawi and
Mrs. Ronald Kahaliononi spoke in opposition to the request
because of traffic concerns. Mr. Sterling stated that other
commercial areas were available, while Ms. Delaries presented
the Planning Commission with a petition in opposition to the
permit request. Also under public testimony, Mrs. Carol
Sasaki, medical receptionist for Dr. Cheng, testified in
support of the request, stating that the proposed facility
would have sufficient parking and would not create traffic
problems. A letter from Ms. Naomi Matsuoka, dated November 9,
1978, in opposition to the permit request was also read into
the record. For the Commission's information, the hearing
transcript of November 16, 1978, the petition in opposition
to the permit request, as well as the letter from Naomi
Matsuoka have been attached (County Exhibits V, Y, and Z).

On December 14, 1978, the Hawaii County Planning Commission
voted to recommend approval of the Special Permit to the Land
Use Commission based on the following findings:

"That the proposed use shall not be contrary to the
objectives sought to be accomplished by the Land Use Law
and Regulations. The objectives of the Land Use Law and
Regulations are to preserve, protect and encourage the
development of lands in the State for those uses to which
these lands are best suited in the interest of the public
health and welfare of the people of the State of Hawaii.
The subject property is within the State Land Use Rural
district. Areas within this district consist of small
farms and/or low density residential uses where 'city-
like' concentrations of people, structures, streets, and
urban level of services are absent, and where small farms
are intermixed with the low density residential lots.
Keauhou Village, which encompasses the subject property,
includes single family dwellings, agricultural activities,
a store, service station, and the old Keauhou School site.

"The proposed medical facility will be small in scale,
designed in keeping with the low density character of the
area, and will provide a necessary service to the com-
munity. Medical health services are an essential part of
community life and its ready availability to the residents
in the area is especially valuable in treating emergency
situations. Thus, the proposed medical facility can become
an integral part of the rural community. Further, the
proposed medical facility also includes a residential unit
for the use of the petitioner. The petitioner, in essence,
proposes to establish a residential-medical or a 'live-in'
doctor situation. This combination will assure that
activities on the subject property will be conducted in

-



such a manner as to be consistent with the residential
character of the area. Based on the nature and scale
of the proposed development, it is determined that it
will be ancillary to community needs, compatible with
the rural character of the area, and therefore con-
sistent with the intent of the State Land Use Rural
designation for Keauhou Village.

"That the proposed use will not unreasonably burden

public agencies in providing public utilities and
facilities. All essential utilities are available to

the subject property. Access to the subject property
would be via the Mamalahoa Highway which connects with
Kuakini Highway approximately 1,000 feet north of the
subject area. In this vicinity, Mamalahoa Highway has

a variable pavement width of 18 to 20 feet. The pave-
ment is currently in poor condition. However, the
portion of the Mamalahoa Highway fronting the subject
property to the intersection with Kuakini Highway has
been programmed for resurfacing next year. Given the
planned improvement of Mamalahoa Highway, its relatively
uncongested traffic condition, and the small scale of the
proposed use, it is not anticipated that the approval of
the subject request will create traffic problems in this
area. Further, as access to the property will be limited
to the Mamalahoa Highway only, the approval of the subject
request should not adversely affect Kuakini Highway.

"That the proposed use is not anticipated to adversely
affect surrounding properties. Due to the relatively
small size and character of the proposed medical facility,
it is not anticipated to generate unusual amounts of
traffic, noise or visual intrusion. Through conditions
of approval, measures may be imposed to further minimize
these potential impacts."

For the Commission's information, the meeting minutes of
December 14, 1978 have been attached (County Exhibit HH) .

The favorable recommendation was subject to the following
conditions:

ol The use of the medical facility shall be limited to
one (1) doctor and his or her staff, and (1) dwelling
unit.

W2 That the residential unit can only be occupied by
the doctor utilizing the medical facility.

3 That a minimum of fifteen (15) parking stalls shall
be provided on-site.



"4, That the design of any and all structures shall be
consistent with the rural-residential character of

the area.

5. That no direct access off Kuakini Highway shall be
permitted. All access shall be off the Mamalahoa
Highway.

" 6se That the plan approval process shall be complied

with. The petitioner, or his authorized represen-
tative, shall submit plans for plan approval within
one (1) year from the effective date of the Special
Permit. Construction shall commence within one (1)
year from the receipt of final plan approval and
shall be completed within two (2) years thereafter.

"Ys That the Special Permit shall be recorded in the
Bureau of Conveyances within 60 days of its effective

date.

"8, Should the use of the property change from the
proposed medical-residential use, the Special Permit

shall automatically become null and void.

"9, That all other applicable rules, regulations and

requirements shall be complied with."

It was further stated by the Planning Commission that:

"Should any of the foregoing conditions not be met,
Permit may be deemed null and void."

the Special
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PLANNING COMMISSION

Planning Department
County of Hawaii

HEARING TRANSCRIPT
November 16, 1978

A regularly advertised public hearing on the application of
Minolu R. Cheng, was called to order at 10:22 a.m. in the
Kealakehe School Cafetorium, Kealakehe, North Kona, Hawaii,
with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding.

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: J. Walsh Hanley
Shigeru Fujimoto Haruo Murakami
Bert H. Nakano
Lorraine R. Jitchaku Ex-officio Member
Alfredo Orita Akira Fujimoto
William J. Paris, Jr. " Deputy Corporation
Charles H. Sakamoto Counsel Reginald Minn

Sidney M. Fuke, Planning Director
Ilima Piianaia, Planner
Norman Hayashi, Planner
wWilliam Moore, Planner

Galen Kuba, representing Ex-officio Member Edward Harada

and approximately 14 people in attendance

CHAIRMAN: We'll proceed with the public hearings advertised
for 10:00 a.m. Public hearing on the application of Minolu R.
Cheng for a Special Permit to allow the establishment of a medical
office on 0.934 acre of land situated within the State Land Use
Rural District. The property involved is located on the mauka
side of Kuakini Highway, approximately 400 feet_ south of the old
Keauhou School site, Keauhou 1lst, North Kona, TMK: 7-8-07:32.
Staff?

PIIANAIA: (Presented background éh file and read into the
record a letter from Mrs. Naomi Matsuoka dated November 9, 1978.)
CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ilima. Before I ask the Commissioners
if they have any questions, is the applicant present?

CHENG: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Dr. Cheng. The Chair at this time would 1like

to ask if there is anyone in the audience who claims to be an
interested party. An interested party is one whose legal rights,
duties, or privileges will be determined or affected by this
proceeding. More specifically, a person has a right to inter-
vene if: (1) He has a property interest in the land in question.
If there is a cloud on the title to the land, this will not stop
the hearing. The party affected must obtain a court order stopping
the hearing; or (2) Lawfully resides on the land; or (3) Has or
can demonstrate that he will be so immediately affected by the
decision and that his interest is clearly distinguishable from
that of the general public,
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Is there such an interested party who wishes to declare himself
at this time? Okay, Reverend Sterling, we will start with you,
if you will come to the microphone first. Reverend Sterling,
you may affirm to the oath. .

STERLING: I do. To clarify - I'm Leon Sterling and I'm a
resident of Keauhou mauka. I will speak against the proposal.

CHAIRMAN: Leon, we're going to just at this time determine
if you are an interested party to be admitted in the case; other-
wise, we can take you just as part of the general public and
entertain your testimony at that time.

Do you have a property interest in the land?

STERLING: No, Mr. Chairman, I'm a resident in the area.
CHAIRMAN: No. You don't lawfully reside on the land that
Dr. Cheng has?

STERLING: No.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, can you demonstrate that you'll be so

immediately affected by the decision, that your interest is
clearly distinguishable from that of the general public?

STERLING: Yes, as I live on the mauka road.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Reverend Sterling, do you want to be admitted
as an interested party or do you want to just testify as a member
of the public? As an interested party, we'll go into a contested
case hearing and you will be able to call witnesses and cross-
examine witnesses as a party. ~ :

STERLING: I don't know, maybe as a general public.

CHAIRMAN: Then I would suggest if it's all right, I would
suggest if it's agreeable to you that you just testify as a member
of the public and a resident in the immediate area. .
STERLING: All right. I go along with that.

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. The other persons who asked to be

admitted as an interested party, the same questions will be asked
to you. You will all be given an opportunity to testify under
the public hearing portion. It is only if you wish to become

and interested party to the application that we would like you

to identify yourself now.

PIIANAIA: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIRMAN: Yes.,
PIIANAIA: It may be helpful for members of the public

here to explain that an interested party would have a right
to appeal an action by the Planning Commission for example.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, the point is well taken. Carol, you want
to be an interested party?

SASAKI: I think so.



CHAIRMAN: Okay, you may still testify. This is a public
hearing so we're going to invite you to testify, but if you
come in as an interested party, then we're going to go through
the complete contested case hearing procedures. That means
that you'll be able to put on a case and you will be able to
call witnesses, you'll be able to cross-examine the staff and
cross—-examine the Commission. It is a more formal procedure
that is almost like a judicial procedure. Now if we do not
follow this procedure, we would go through our regular Special
Permit procedure at which we first will ask the Commission if
they have any questions of the staff, then we will call the
applicant forward so that we can ask the applicant questions
about his application, and then we will invite public testi-
mony from those of you who are in the audience. Okay, so
unless you're prepared to proceed with calling witnesses and
cross—-examining, then I would suggest that you just come up

as an interested member of the public.

SASAKI: I'll speak as a member of the public.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, is there anyone who wishes to be declared
an interested person? All right, we will then proceed. Com-
missioners, you have heard the staff's background report on

the Special Permit application of Dr. Minolu R. Cheng. Do you
have any questions of the staff concerning this application?

If there are no questions of the staff, at this time I would
like to call the applicant or a representative of the applicant
forward. Dr. Cheng, if you will raise your right hand please.
Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth on the
testimony you are about to give before the Hawaii County Planning
Commission?

CHENG: 1 do.
CHAIRMAN: Please state your. name into the microphone.
CHENG: Minolu R. Cheng. Medical service need is a con-

stant need. It's not just at war times and always one time or
another you need the medical service; and the doctor is trying
to improve the service to the community people. So as far as,.
I feel, I didn't have any special objection to put an office
any place, but it just happens to be that it's my property. I
don't have any other property along this Kuakini Highway and to
me I think there shouldn't be any trouble to the surrounding
area because my type of practice little bit different. People
doesn't just walk in and come to see me. They got to have
appointment.

And my speak of seeing patients, about three or four patients

an hour. So I have provided 20 parking lots which is practically
my whole day's patient load. So as far as increasing the traffic
in the Mamalahoa Highway, I think probably four cars per hour
through that particular point, I don't think it's going to be
increasing any problems. And yet I was trying to establish one
entrance from the Kuakini Highway which can take care most of

the emergency patients, like the car accident; and that is my
type of practice, basically is surgery and trauma. Therefore,

it might still cut down the traffic. That people are thinking
that this is like a supermarket and that is not true; and yet,
our time of practice is from 9-12 and from 2-5. After 5 o'clock,
it quiet. So it will be increasing traffic and yet is practically
is independent kind, so will not give any surrounding neighbor or



anything any burden, you see, and yet constantly we only try
one thing, to help people. It's not just for my own benefit. I
don't have any benefit for just give service.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you, Dr. Cheng. The Commissioners
may have some questions for you. Dr. Cheng, do you visualize
your practice similar to the way Dr. Mar used to be set up in
Kona where you have your offices on the ground floor and your
residence would be on the top?

CHENG: This is the idea, thinking, because the people was.
getting older. So one of these days I will be getting older too,
you see. And the condition of increasing practice is reversible,
you see. When I come here I see about three or four patients a
day, now I see fifteen patients, and one of these days I may have
to see twenty patients, you see. So by the time I might be, not
feel, interested to drive all the way to come down and medical
service is constant, you see. So this is a idea in mind that I
might use the upstairs as my residential as time goes by and
sounds practical to me. '

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Dr. Cheng, now in your practice, you schedule
all of your patients by appointment so it's not a matter where
you have a lot of people driving up and waiting to get in to

see you? Usually your patients have set appointments and -2

CHENG: YeEs!,

CHAIRMAN: Yes.,

CHENG: Usually we do not take any walk-in patients unless
it's emergency.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, and the type of emergencies would -.

CHENG: Like bleeding, tréuma, and whatever lacerating
condition.

CHAIRMAN: Things that can be routinely handled in an office

that would not necessarily involve going directly to the hospital?

CHENG: People will go to the nearby facility as possible,
therefore as far as I feel actually it is benefit the neighbor
most.

CHAIRMAN: To the immediate neighbors right around you?

CHENG: Yes. Because the thing is you cannot help and
then go to Bonolulu by airport because by that time it's too
late.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. Commissioners, do you have any
guestions of Dr. Cheng? Yes, Commissioner Orita.

ORITA: ‘ Dr. Cheng, would you say that most of your patients
will be by appointment only?

CHENG: Yes.

ORITA: That is part of the reason why you think that the

traffic will be minimal?

CHENG: That is the reason why I try to keep away from the crowd,
because the Kona is a constant and is a rapid growing area and



if I tried to make the office down in the town eventually it will
be adding on more congestion.

ORITA: Yes, but Dr. Cheng you still would not deprive
anybody from coming to your office with or without appointments,
right?

CHENG: But that is emergency.
ORITA: No, but still yet you would deprive the public -?
CHENG: Right. But the thing is I had been practice

selectively so I-do have that much, I know, I understand your
question. Okay, every patient going to come in without making
appointment and then just increasing the traffic.

ORITA: Right, but the traffic could increase if people

do come without making appointments.

CHENG: Traffic-that's increasing as the population increase.
CHAIRMAN: Commissioners? Yes, staff?

PITANAIA: Dr. Cheng, on your plans that you submitted to our

office, you show about 1200 square feet of area which is identified
as an additional office space. What the Commission is considering
right now is basically for you to establish one office, although
you've shown another office which is not identified. Do you have
any idea whether this would be another office?

CHENG: In frame of mind is I'd like to have pharmacy down
there because every time the patient come and then get prescription
from there, but the thing is I cannot have competence or foresee
that I can obtain a pharmacy. But if that is the case I cannot
obtain a pharmacy I may just make a second compatible professional
office, like another doctor or whatever, just working certain

hours and will not be adding any noise to the neighbors.

PIIANAIA: Could you describe for us what you mean by a
pharmacy.

CHENG: Pharmacy is the place where they fill the prescrip-
tion or any medical needs.

PIIANAIA: How large a pharmacy do you plan?

CHENG: I don't think it would be bigger than Oshima.
CHAIRMAN: By bigger than Oshima you mean the pharmacy section
in the Oshima store?

CHENG: Right, right.

PIIANAIA: You're talking about a full line of pharmaceutical
services?

CHENG: I was thinking whatever to fulfill the community

needs as possible that's all.

CHAIRMAN: Dr. Cheng, I think one of the points that the
staff and some of the Commissioners are trying to determine
from you is that if this second office that is shown on your



plans is used for a pharmacy would the pharmacy mostly be dispensing
medication to your patients or do you see people having prescrip-
tions from other doctors driving to your office to have their
prescriptions filled?

CHENG:" No, my main concern actually is only limited to my
patients as possible because that way increasing the traffic.

CHAIRMAN: So if you had a pharmacy then it would be basically
only for dispensing medication to your own patients?

CHENG: Right, but the thing is I might not follow through-
this plan because might be I have another doctor to work together
in the future but that is unknown.

CHAIRMAN: Unknown right now.

CHENG: Right, right. ©So I cannot answer the question.
CHAIRMAN: So possible uses would be another physician prac-
ticing with you?

CHENG: Or independent.

CHAIRMAN: Or independent?

CHENG: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Or a pharmacy or maybe a professional office like
a CPA or a lawyer?

CHENG: Right, right.

CHAIRMAN: That is what you're saying?

CHENG: That's what my planning.

CHAIRMAN: But you have no immediate plans for that?

CHENG: I have no immediately idea. But it definitely

will keep independent and privately as possible. Commissioners?
Yes, Commission Sakamoto.

SAKAMOTO: Dr. Cheng, what time will you be opened from

week days and weekends?

CHENG: From 9-12 and from 2-5 and Wednesday, Saturday,
Sunday off because I'm mainly a surgical doctor, you see.

SAKAMOTO: So the pharmacy will be closed Saturday and Sunday?
CHENG: I think probably I will abandon that plan as a
pharmacy because that probably is not so good.

JITCHAKU: One question, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Jitchaku.

JITCHAKU: Dr. Cheng, you sort of I guess answered my question.

You are not a regular physican type of operation, you are a
specialist, is that it?



CHENG: I practice many surgery, but in Kona I have no
way to practice special only for surgery, so have to take
general family practice also.

JITCHAKU: How long have you been here in Kona, Dr. Cheng?
CHENG: Three years.
JITCHAKU: Okay, I'm not familiar with Kona and its general

practitioners, so I'm going to ask you some questions because -
I don't live in the area. Do you know of any physicians or
doctors that live within the area or all the doctors located
in Kailua?

CHENG: I know every doctor in the area because we have
staff meeting, every month meeting.

JITCHAKU: So you feel the need is there, that's why you plan
to have your office in a residential lot?

CHENG: The location was between two groups - the Kona
Coast and the Kona Medical - and it's in the center of West
Hawaii, so it's completely independent and it has no, anything
to bother other doctors.

JITCHAKU: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Nakano.
NAKANO: You are a surgeon too from the report that you

have here. Where do you intend to do your surgery, at the
general hospital in Kona?

CHENG: The surgery mainly too is hospital. There is no
surgery done in office except in minor surgery. Surgery mainly
a hospital practice type of doctor. The office is mainly just
for followup. But I can take care family care because that's
what to do.

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Commissioners, any further guestions
of Dr. Cheng?

HAYASHI: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes.

HAYASHI: I think it's still unclear at this time as to what
this Special Permit is for, whether it's for a medical office,
two medical offices, a pharmacy, or lawyer's office. I think

that should be determined inasmuch as you'll be granting or denying
a permit based on the specific use.

CHAIRMAN: Dr. Cheng, staff is recommending to Commission that
the second area that you show as an office that we are able at
this time to determine what its use is going to be so that we

can proceed with the processing of your application.

CHENG: My main concern is that to make a medical office,
other than that I don't really concerned.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, so the second office that you're showing
right now, could you tell us what kind of use you would use?



CHENG: Most likely it will be another doctor's office
and that's all.

CHAIMRAN: So what your testimony then is that the additional,
how many feet was it, Ilima?

PIIANAIA: Twelve hundred feet.

CHAIRMAN: The additional 1200 feet some time in the future
would be used as a second doctor's office?

CHENG: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, and not a pharmacy or not any other profes-

sional kind of offices?

CHENG: Right because before I didn't have any, about
this never going to be objection about increasing traffic so
I think I go bent my proposed to be a pharmacy. Let them go
all the way down to the town instead of give them the service
closer.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, then your testimony is that the 1200 square
feet that is shown in your application, you would like to have
that included in the Special Permit application for a second
doctor's office?

CHENG: Second doctor's office.
CHAIRMAN: Norman.
HAYASHI: Mr. Chairman, I also have another question for

Dr. Cheng. Dr. Cheng, you had indicated that the reason why

you picked this particular location was that you owned this
particular property and also that as far as location-wise this

is the center of West Hawaii. Have you ever contacted or

looked at other commercially, already zoned areas for establishing
your doctor's office, say in Kainaliu, Honalo or Kailua?

CHENG: I have reserved one lot in Komohama, it's called
Kuakini Village, which I have been waiting for three years has
no moving; and I have no idea how long it going to move. So it
might be indefinite. Then I personally renting the office

that is getting smaller for me expanding because they have more
new equipment that I have been passing all over my office now.

HAYASHI: So what you're saying then, at the present time
there are no available spaces or commercially zoned areas for
the establishment of your particular use?

CHENG: There have no suitable one. In Kona you have
very hard time to find commercial area, there's mostly no
commercial area. You can see from Kailua all the way down to
Kealakekua, I don't see anyone, or you may have one I cannot
afford.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. Staff, any further questions?
If there are none, Dr. Cheng, we do ask that you remain in

the audience. There may be some questions from the public
that we would like to ask you to respond to. May I have an
indication from all of you from the public who wishes to
testify on this application, just by raise of hands? Okay,



would you all at this time stand and we'll swear you in at

one time please. If you'll raise your right hands. Do you

swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth on the appllca—
tion now before the Hawaii County Planning Commission?

STERLING: I do.
DELARIES: I do.
KONG: I do.
MANDAWI : X do,
CHAIRMAN: Please be seated. Leon, you're closest to the

microphone. We'll start with you.

STERLING: I'm Leon Sterling and I live on the mauka Keauhou
area just off the so-called 0l1d Donkey Mill Road and I'd like

to preface my statement by saying that I participated in the
opening of NDr. Cheng's present office. However, in trying to
get a proper perspective of this, I'd like to look at the whole
area. This is State and this is State. Now because of the
increased traffic, you know, that we're widening the Kuakini
Highway down towards Kailua and there are also priorities on what
we're going to do with the expansion of Kaahumanu Highway,

this application, I think, would have a tremendous effect on

the possibilities of asking the State to widen Mamalahoa. We
have in the mauka part here the so-called 0ld Poi Mill Road

or 0ld Poi Factory Road, all of these parts, where Bishop

Estate is, are now being occupied. So we have an increase traffic
situation here. And there are no vacancies in our area. And
then I also sit on the Board on Bishop Estate, we've negotiated
new leases with these farmers here so there is a definite
increase in traffic along this area. This can be shown I

believe by your local police records in the amount of accidents
on the Mamalahoa Highway in this area. With the school situated
right there and then of course it's an exaggerated example but
during the elections, the voting booth is here, it's very difficult
to travel along this Mamalahoa Highway because of the increased
traffic. This would be my principal objection because of the
priorities that have already been established on the State

to widen Kuakini in this area and the pressure that is now

being put upon the State Department of Transportation to extend
Kaahumanu. I say that if we create this here, this will increase
pressure on the State to probably widen or straighten out
Mamalahoa in this area, cause it is although the traffic may

be considered light as offered by the testimony of the applicant,
the school buses do travel there and this is a very narrow
section with bad curves.

We do have industrial areas makai. Yesterday I was up at the
Ashikawa Building there, the doctors' offices adjacent to the
Kealakekua Post Office, are very well patronized. And I1I'd

have to go along with the staff member's, Mr. Hayashi's, recom-
mendation that there are available commercial spaces. Thank you
very much. If you have any questions, I'll try to answer them.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, CommisSioner Sakamoto.
SAKAMOTO: Mr. Sterling, how many miles is your place?
STERLING: I come down the, oh, so-called old Donkey Mill

Road. I don't think, it's within a, it's close, less than a



mile. But we do have an increased traffic problem in this
whole area. In the past few months, we've had a measurable
amount of accidents in this area because of the increased
traffic, as I said because of the opening up of the old p01
factory, all of these lots here are being opened.

CHAIRMAN: Leon, you're not an adjacent property owner there?
STERLING: No, sir, I'm not.

HAYASHI: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Hayashi.

HAYASHI: Just to clarify the record, I did not recommend

that he seek other commercial zoned areas. I just asked him
the guestion.

STERLING: I agree with you, Mr. Hayashi.
CHAIRMAN: Okay.
STERLING: But I would say from my own particular knowledge

of the area, there are other commercial areas open.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you, Leon. There doesn't appear to
be any questions for you. Next, please. Yes, you may come
forward.

DELAIRES: You need my name?
CHAIRMAN: Yes, please.
DELAIRES: Esther Delaires, Keauhou. (Read and presented

petition on file.)

CHAIRMAN: Mrs. Delaries, the people that have signed this
petition, are they all residents in this immediate area?

DELAIRES: They are with the exception of Virginia Haanio
who is presently building a home there, but she resides in Kailvua.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. Commissioners, do you have any
questions you'd like to ask at this time? Staff, do you have
any questions of Ms. Delaries?

PIIANAIA: I think the only question I have is whether the
19 signatures are all separate or whether there are any, for
instance, numbers 3 and 4 are they husband and wife?

DELAIRES: They are 8 or 9 husbands -and wives.
PIIANAIA: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you very much. Next please. You

may be seated.

KONG: Yes, I'm Lily Kong and I have a property not

too far away from it, but I'll show you where it is now. That's
my property and I was one of the signers on the petition and

I'm also the district supervisor for the Hawaii HCEOC where at
Keauhou School I have a day care center. That's youngsters from
age 3 years old and this is why the objection. 1It's a nonprofit
organization anyway, the HCEOC. So right along this corner here,
I'll point it out, it's quite a danger corner. Here, this corner
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here, because as you‘re making the turn coming where Dr. Cheng's
office will be, there's a bend there that you can't see on the
other side where the school is at and it's pretty heavy, and

also for others coming down from my area, from Dr. Kent Nakamaru's,
coming on down to the main highway. So this is the only objection
I have for a doctor's office within this community; and I believe
that everybody, these are all old-timers, they already have their
own family doctors. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Staff?

PIIANAIA: With the Chairman's permission, I'd like to ask
Mrs. Kong just a couple of questions.

CHAIRMAN: Lily, staff has some questions for you. Please
come up to the microphone.

PIIANAIA: How many students or how many participants are
there presently in the day care facility?

KONG: It's 20 to 22 students.

PIIANAIA: And are they bussed there or -?

KONG: Yes, I have a l5-passenger van that I house them
to and from school every day, excepting Saturdays and Sundays.
PITANAIA: - Okay, what hours are you in operation?

KONG:" They're there from 8 o'clock in the morning till
3 o'clock in the afternoon.

PIIANAIA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, anyone else any questions for Mrs. Kong?

Thank you, Mrs. Kong. Yes, please come forward and state your
name into the microphone.

MADAWI : Ann Madawi.
CHAIRMAN: Okay, please proceed.
MADAWI : I'm on the petition also. Dr. Cheng's office

is next to my place and because of the bad road coming up from

my home already and if the traffic is going to get more congested
up there, it's going to be really dangerous because I have children
and I have a neighbor that has children that play around in that
area. And a while back we had incidences of robbery in our area
and I'm afraid that if people are going to be coming up in that
area, I might have to be staying home all the time just watching

my home because there's no wall or anything high enough to prevent
people from just jumping over. So I'm opposed to this also.

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners or staff, do you have any questions
for Mrs. Madawi? Okay, thank you very much. Who's next?

KAHALIONONI: We have our home too in the area. They park on
our side of our property and they block our property. Now what's
going to happen if more than 20 cars come? They're going to be
parking on our side of the road. And when the buses do come

and drop the children off at 2:30 or 1:30, it's on my place and
there has been incidences where cars don't see the bus stop and
they bang the back of the bus, just about. I guess that's all

I have to say.

.



CHAIRMAN: Okay, Commissioners, any questions?

ORITA: Yeah, I have a question. How long have you been
residing in that area?

KAHALIONONI: Let's see, my husband was born and raised there,
but for several years we've -,

ORITA: And the highway there, what condition is the highway?

KAHALIONONI: Poor. As you come around the corner of the road,
the bend is real bad, and you have holes here and holes there.

ORITA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Galen, you might take notice, note the condition
of the road. I'm sure all of these concerned residents of that
area would appreciate some help from the Department of Public
Works for repair of the road, pukas.

KUBA: The Department does have a plan for improving that
roadway, but unfortunately like most long projects like this one,
there's an acute lack of funds to implement this project.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Galen, what are the plans for improvement?
Is this the straightening of the road, and taking out the bends
or is it just filling of pukas and doing some resurfacing? What
are the plans for the improvements there?

KUBA: Basically resurfacing, but we will improve only
certain bends. We can't fix all of them cause it is a lengthy
project. It will extend from Palani all the way down to Honalo.

CHAIRMAN: And do you have any idea what the time schedule
is on that? .

KUBA: As far as I know the plans are completed, lack of
funding is what's holding it up.

CHAIRMAN: So the working drawings, everything is all com-
pleted and ready to go, except funding?

KUBA: Right.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. The Chair at this time would

like to invite anyone else who wishes to testify? Carol, did
you wish to testify?

SASAKI: Yes.,
CHAIRMAN: Yes, you may come forward.
SASAKI: My name is Carol Sasaki and I'm a medical recep-

tionist and it seems like it's so much opposed at this time. I
feel that, you know, all the people who are against are not one
of our patients in our office, so they do not realize how our
office is actually runned. Dr. Cheng and I are the only ones
there in the office and we plan to stay that way as long as we
can and as far as our office, we have been running all these
years and we have worked on an appointment only basis although
we do take emergencies if we feel that they can‘*t make it up

to the hospital on time or whatever, but those are allowed under
any office.
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And they are worrying about not enough parking and traffic
congestion maybe like Kona Medical where you see cars all over
the place but they also probably work on appointments; but as
far as we have heard, their appointments are sometimes 2 hours
off, they wait there for hours and can't get in, whereas we

work where they come and they go out, one to one. They come in,
we see them and they go out and the patient comes in and we see
them and they go out again. And where we are at Kuakini Pro-
fessional Plaza, it is already congested there but not only with
our office there, it's all with the other offices there that
there's congestion. So we can only limit one to one which we
have been doing all these years. And the location of the
proposed office, we feel, will suit our needs because we do work
in that way. We do not work like Kona Medical or Kona Coast
Medical. We are very independent. And as far as traffic is
concerned up mauka there I would say it would be like any other
area where the growth of Kona is growing so fast it would be

any place where you put an office, there will be congestion;

and it's not only because of him. It's because of other

areas surrounding it.

And as far as she had said about parking in front her house and
all that, it was because there really was no other place to
park there -.

MADAWI: They still were parked there...{inaudible).

CHAIRMAN: ‘Carol, Carol, excuse me, please. We're interested
not in any problem that Dr. Cheng may have had with somebody

else because of somebody parking there. We're really interested
in your feelings concerning the application, your support of

the application, so as to help the Commission make a judgement

as to what in fact should be changed.

SASAKI: Okay, so I really support his office being in that
area, not because we don't have any patients in that area but
because we can help the other people in the whole Kona area; and
that's all I have to say.

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Commissioners, did you have any
questions? Okay.

DELAIRES: What about our taxes?

CHAIRMAN: Please be seated. Okay, there was a question
concerning taxes. Staff, can you comment on that at all? Will

there be any change in the tax structure in the residential area?

PIIANAIA: You'll have to realize that that's something which
is under the Department of Taxation that we cannot offer any
comment on actually.

CHAIRMAN: Sidney?

FUKE: ' Mr. Chairman, actually from what little that we

know about the taxation structure, the taxes would be based
primarily on the basis of the potential for your property to

be similarly upgraded. And so if your property is maybe like

zoned residential and your neighbor's property is zoned commercial,
the valuation of your property may be looked at differently by

the Tax Office, as opposed to if your neighbor's property were

also residential. It's my understanding that the Tax Department
looks at also the potential for adjacent properties to be similarly
upgraded and make an assessment. But as the staff had indicated,
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previously we cannot conclusively state that if this medical center
goes where it's proposed whether in fact tomorrow your taxes, your
real property taxes, will automatically inflate.

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Yes.
DELAIRES: Our taxes will go up then?
CHAIRMAN: No, what he's saying is he cannot answer the question.

If you want to ask a question, please come up to the microphone so
we can have this as part of the record.

MADAWI: If he does put his office up, is he going to provide
fences between my land, boundary, so that people won't Jjump over
and get into our property?

CHAIRMAN: Okay, if you'll please be seated. Dr. Cheng,
there is a rendering of the type of building that you propose

to construct on your land. Would you tell us a little bit

about the building and landscaping program that you have in mind
for that building?

CHENG: I feel we'll do the best to improve the area and
the worry about the people will jump over this property, I think
that thing nobody can prevent but I will make the best fence,
either plant a tree and then cover, make the area pretty much
defined and as what I say before I make the place completely
independent. I will not allow anyone to park next door parking
place because at that time this is not even open yet. I have
provided almost 1/3 of area for parking so this should be no
problem for them to park outside on parking area. And yet if

the time goes on, entire area in the front also can be locked
into parking area, but if needed. If not needed, we will make

it as a garden and make it nice and make it beautiful. So I
don't feel that their objection.is wrong, but it is a good point
for us to still mention and make more improvements and also point
out the traffic that has been growing is the road condition. But
I don't feel it's because of me, if increasing the traffic, because
I don't have that much magic to increasing the traffic that way.
But as the general population increases, the traffic improve,
that is not under my control.

CHAIRMAN: Staff, how many parking stalls would a medical
office for one or two physicians be required?

PIIANAIA: Okay, for a physician, a doctor or a dentist,
the requirement is 4 stalls for each doctor or dentist. Basically,
it'1ll be 8 stalls for two doctors.

CHAIRMAN: So if Doctor Cheng's application were for two
medical offices, he would be required to have 8 stalls?
PIIANAIA: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: And he is proposing 20 stalls right now?
PIIANAIA: Right. The maximum requirement would be 8 stalls

if there were two medical practitioners plus for the dwelling, so
it'll probably be a minimum of 9 stalls. So he's way in excess
of what's required.

CHAIRMAN: So he has almost two times the number of required
parking stalls?
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PIIANAIA: The minimum requirement, yes.

CHAIRMAN: Yes. Now, Dr. Cheng, did I hear you correctly
that it is your intention to building the facility that's shown
up on the wall, that you also plan to build a garden on the
rest of the property? You have a beautification plan to go
along with this?

CHENG: No, the thing is at the present time I will try
to make as beautiful as can but in case need more parking I will
sacrifice place for parking. So I will prove one thing - that

I don't use other place purposely for parking.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, we understand that Dr. Cheng; and staff has
already said that you have two times as much parking right now
than you are required. So it's not a question of needing more
space for parking. You're showing adequate, you have adequate
parking that's being shown on your proposed plans. So if you did
not need additional parking, then you would landscape that area?
Is that what your intention would be?

CHENG: Yes.
CHAIRMAN: Yes. Okay. Staff?
PIIANAIA: Although Dr. Cheng says 20 parking stalls, if

this application were approved and when it came into the office
then we would sit down and actually determine how many he could
get on the property. He has shown 20, that does not necessarily
mean that we would approve any plan as shown for the parking
layout.

CHAIRMAN: It'll be at plan approval time?
PITANAIA: Yes.
CHAIRMAN: Okay, Commissioners, do you have any further gues-

tions of either Dr. Cheng, or any of the people who have testified
this morning?

PARIS: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Paris.

PARIS: I have a question for the Doctor.

CHAIRMAN: Yes. Dr. Cheng, would you come to the microphone.

Commissioner Paris would like to ask you a gquestion.

PARIS: Dr. Cheng, how many emergency patients besides
your appointment patients do you receive during the process of
a day, I mean on an average?

CHENG: ' At the present I see about 16 patients a day; and
it means 8 patients in the morning and 8 patients in the afternoon.
So about 4 will be add on as emergency comes supposedly, so I

run up to 12 patients in the morning the maximum.

PARIS: And in the afternoon none?

CHENG: Afternoon is supposed I have that much emergencies
about 4 more so would be about 20, 24 in total for the whole day.
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PARIS: So that is 24 patients during the process of a day?

CHENG: Yes, at the maximum patients and during a 7 hour
period.
PARIS: And your other associate who would come in, another

doctor, whether he was associated with you or an individual
basis, his load you think would be about the same?

CHENG: If he has about the same as me as the maximum it
will be about 10.

PARIS: So we're probably speaking about a maximum of

50 cars during a day if everybody came in one vehicle? I'm

just trying to figure that out because I think if we go back

in history a little bit to Keauhou, you know, until the mid-1960's
that was the only highway serving South Kona from Kailua. Kuakini
Highway ended at Keauhou School and that was it, every car went
by. You remember the load then and I know what an inconvenience
it was to you then. At one time the post office was directly
across the street from this facility, so we looked back and then
we had everybody in that area running to the post office, and

when the school was there we had people in the morning and people
in the afternoon. My child went to Keauhou Kindergarten so

we dropped her off and picked her up twice a day. So these 48

or 50 cars will nowhere come close to the traffic that that

area has been associated with. However, if the majority of

the people feel that they'd rather have the convenience of no
traffic at all as compared to a medical facility I speak from

past experience when I was manager of Puuwaawaa Ranch for 3 1/2
years and I was raising my children there. At 1 or 2 o'clock

in the morning you have an emergency. Even though Dr. Mar was

not my doctor at that time, most of the times I would go to him

in the middle of the night to patch them up or something and it's
a wonderful convenience, I feel, when a doctor lives in the same
area as your place for emergency things such as this. I think

we have to look at this too. But however if the majority feels
that they don't want it, I will have to go along with the majority.
Thank you.

PIIANAIA: We'd like to ask Dr. Cheng one more question if
it's all right with the Chairman.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, please, Dr. Cheng. Staff would like to
ask you another question.

PIIANAIA: Dr. Cheng, going back to having two office spaces
on the ground floor of the proposed structre, is there any reason
why you need to have two office spaces? 1Is it possible for you
to have a single office in that area?

CHENG: In my mind, all intention is good intention because
nobody is machine, cannot work 24 hours, 7 days a week. So if going
to provide good service, it always good to have another one like

a spare tire vehicle, that way. Like your car always getting spare
tire. So that is in mind that I have other doctor who willing

to work with me and we can provide it, whatever the need arise,

and which can be just for time for a while yet.

PIIANAIA: There is, however, nothing that would prevent you
from operating singly?

CHENG: No, it will not prevent my type of operation.
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PIIANAIA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, do you have any further questions
you'd like to ask Dr. Cheng? No. Yes, Dr. Cheng.

CHENG: Yes, I understand Mr. Paris because I do really

feel if I am lucky enough my doctor next to me.

FUKE: Mr. Chairman, if I may, I'd like to just clarify

the statement about taxation.

CHAIRMAN: Yes,

FUKE: The way the values are assessed, I mean your properties

are based upon two factors. One is like whether your properties are
zoned commercial, industrial or residential. They have certain rates
for, they have different rates for different categories. The second
one is how valuable is your property. In other words, the assessed
valuation of your property. If for example your property is worth
$20,000 and you would be taxed based upon the appraised or the
assessed valuation of $20,000 times that rate. Now if for example
you put in a new structure on such as the proposed medical facility
then obviously on that particular property the valuation of that
property would increase. But whether you as an adjacent property
owner, your value would increase, that we don't know right now.

That determination would have to be made by the Department of
Taxation. But we would know very definitely that if the permit

is issued for this property, that Mr. Cheng's property, his
valuation would increase; but we don't know whether the valuation

or as a matter of fact might even decrease. We don't know.

CHENG: I had to fight for increasing my property, how
they don't need to fight for increasing property and they're
getting increased. That is to their benefit instead of their
disadvantage.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Dr. Cheng, let me recap where I think we

are now. Your testimony is that you wish to build a combination
residence and medical facility on your property, that you basically
practice four days a week, you practice on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday,
Friday, and Saturday. Five days a week?

CHENG: Saturday we usually are closed alternate weeks and
we open half day alternate weeks to get the paperwork done.

CHAIRMAN: I see. Okay, and that your patients are scheduled
on -.

CHENG: And I usually answer the emergencies 24 hours, 7
days a week if my patients need it.

CHAIRMAN: Right.

CHENG: ' And your patients are scheduled at regular intervals

so that you don't have a whole lot of people coming to your office
and waiting around. So it is your testimony then that you do not
think that you will substantially increase the traffic in that
area?

CHENG: I do believe I will not be increasing the traffic

because of the doctor office is there. Because four cars run
through the area for the hours is comparatively minor.
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CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you very much., If there are no further
questions of either the applicant or the staff, the Chair at this

time will entertain a motion either to continue the public hearing
or to close the public hearing. »

SAKAMOTO: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Sakamoto.

SAKAMOTO: I make a motion to close the public hearing.
PARIS: Second the motion, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN: It has been moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and

seconded by Commissioner Paris that the public hearing on the
application of Dr. Minolu R. Cheng be closed. All those in
favor so signify by saying aye?
COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
CHAIRMAN: Oppose, same sign? The public hearing is closed.’
The public hearing adjourned at 11:31 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sharon M. Nomura
Secretary

ATTES T¢

7
William F. Mielcke
Chairman, Planning Commission
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November 14, 1978

County Planning Commission
County of Hawaii

25 Aupuni

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Dear Commissioners:

We, the undersigned strongly object to the request by Minolu R.
Cheng for a special permit application to establish a medical office within
our residential area. We feel that such a request, if granted, will place
a great hardship'upon the people of this quiet neighborhood. There will
undoubtedly be more traffic in an already conjested area. The creation of
a business enterprise in this area cannot help but contribute to more noise
and people conjestion. Then too, we feel that our property taxes will

necessarily escalate in the near future,

Furthermore, to allow a commercial-type establishment within our
residential area under a special permit application will obviously change
the complex of our neighborhood, thus setting the stage for possible future
development, that which we who have lived in this rural setting do not want

at all.

It is our belief that although another medical center could be of
benefit to the Kona community, the selection of our residential and rural

arca is definitely the wrong place and location.

We, therefore, petition the County Planning Commissioners to deny

the applcation.

,) Rispectf ully submitted,
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November 9, 1978

Mr. Sidney Fuke, Director
Planning Department
County of Hawaii

Aupuni Street

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

RE: Special Permit Application
Keauhou 1lst., North Xona, Hawaii
Tax Map Key: 7-8-07:132

Dear Sir,

As owner and,resident of the adjoining lot, Tax Map
Key: 7-8-07:33, I submit herewith, my objection to the
establishment of a medical office on the above parcel
of land. I believe it will create an incentive for
other businesses to locate in this vicinity.

It was not too many years ago, when another doctor
proposed a medical office on TMK: 7-8-06:9 and was
turned down by your Department.

I would like to have the area remain as is, in agriculture
and residential.

%gurs very truly,

0, Motk

Ni\?l N.~ Matspoka

'Y'I"yl‘
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PLANNING COMMISSICN

Planning Department
County of Hawaii

MINUTES
December 14, 197¢

The Planning Commission wet in regqular sessicn at 9:00 a.m., in
the First Hawailian Bank lieeting Room, failua, North Kona, Hawaii,
and 2:57 p.m. at Kealakelie School Cafetorium, Kealakehe, North
Kona, Hawaii, with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding.

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Ex-officio Member
J. Walsh Hanley Akira Fujimbdto
Shigeru Fujimoto
Lorraine R. Jitchaku
Haruo Murakami
Bert H. Nakanc
Alfredo Orita
William J. Paris, Jr. (Left at 9:50 a.m.,
returned at 11:20 a.m.)
Charles H. Sakamoto (Left at 4:38 p.m.)

Sidney M. Fuke, Director

Ilima Piianaia, Planner

Keith XKato, Planner

Gerald Hay, Planner (Left at 1:30 p.m.)

Norman Hayashi, Planner (From 10:00 a.m. and left
at 11:58 a.m.)

Royden Yamasato, Planner (From 10:00 a.m. and
left at 1:3C p.m.)

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward
Harada

and approximately 14 people in attendance at 9:00 a.m.,
26 people at: 10:43 a.m., 34 people at 11:00 a.m.,
12 people at: 11:45 a.m., 4 people at 12:22 p.m., 6 people
at 2:57 p.m., and 10 people at 3:35 p.m.

REPORTS: Nomination Committee headed by Commissioner
Sakamoto presented the slate with William F. Mielcke as chairman
and Walsh Hanley as vice chairman. Commissioner Paris moved and
Commissioner Jitchaku seconded that the nominations be closed,
motion carried.

At this time, Planning Director Fuke advised that the Planning
Department together with Corporation Counsel is also preparing
our own findings of fact and conclusions of law; so deferred
making any comment on Steven Morse's proposed findings as sub-
mitted by GEDCO.

RECESS: The Chair called a recess at 9:07 a.m.
RECONVENED : The meeting reconvened az 9:11 a.m.
Commissioner Fujimoto made a motion to reconsider the Joan Aanavi
action for approval, and seconded by Commissioner Sakamoto; motion
carried. Commissioner Sakamoto then moved and Commissioner Paris

seconded' that the Aanavi application be defered until such time
as all parties who testified can be notifed; motion carried

with six ayes and three noes.
EXHIBIT HH



SPECIAL PERMIT Application of State of Hawaii Department of

STATE DEPARTMENT Education for a Special Permit to allow the con-
OF EDUCATION tinued use of three sites situated within the
KE'EI AND KAUHAKO, State Land Use Agricultural District for public
SOUTH KONA; & educational purposes. The sites involved are:

PAHOA, NORTH KOHALA a) Honaunau School, Ke'ei 2nd, South Kona, TMK:

8-3-13:21; b) Ho'okena School, Kauhako, South
Kona, TMK: 8-6-10:9 & 12; c¢) Kohala School, Pahoa, North Kohala,
TMK: 5-5-8:24 & 42.

Staff presented recommendation on file.

Commissioner Sakamoto moved and Commissioner Orita seconded that the
Commission send a favorable recommendation to the State Land Use
Commission for the reascns and with the conditions outlined by the
staff. A roll call vote was taken and motion carried with nine ayes.

RECESS : The Chair called a recess at 12:03 p.m.
RECONVENED: The meeting reconvened at 12:09 p.m.

AMENDMENT TO Application of Linco Construction Co., Inc. to
PDP NO. 8 amer.d Planned Development Permit No. 8 which
LINCO CONSTRUCTION allcwed the submission of plans for a 230-unit
CO.,  INC. condominium project for plan approval. The
WAIKOLOA, SOUTH ameridment is to reduce the number of units to
KOHALA 124 to be contained within 12 structures in lieu

.

of the 11 structures originally planned. Also
requested is a one-year time extension until December 6, 1979, to
allow the submission of plans for plan approval. The area involved
is located along the west side of Lua-Kula Street, approximately
600 feet south of the Lua-Kula Street - Laie Street intersection,
Waikoloa Village, Waikoloa, South Kohala, TMK: 6-8-03:11.

Staff presented recommendation on file.

It was moved by Commiss:ioner Nakano and seconded by Commissioner
Orita that the application of Linco Construction Co., Inc. to amend
Planned Development Permit No. 8 be approved with the understanding
that all the existing conditions remain in effect. A roll call

vote was taken and motion carried with nine ayes.

/.

‘/SPECIAL PERMIT Appiication of Minolu R. Cheng for a Special

MINOLU R. CHENG Permit to allow the establishment of a medical
KEAUHOU 1ST, NORTH .office on 0.934 acre of land situated within
KONA the State Land Use Rural District. The property

involved is located on the mauka side of Kuakini
Highway, approximately 400 feet south of the old Keauhou School site,
Keauhou 1lst, North Kona, TMK: 7-8-07:32.

Staff presented favorable recommendation on file.

It was clarified that the emergency entry not be allowed and that

all traffic to the office residence be off the Mamalahoa Highway,

and that the doctor facility 1is to operate exclusively like a home
occupation.

It was moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and seconded by Commissioner
Jitchaku that the Commission send a favorable recommendation to

the State Land Use Commission for the reasons and with the conditions
outlined by the staff. A roll call vote was taken and motion carried
with nine ayes.
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STATE OF HAWAII
LAND USE COMMISSION
Suite 1795
Pacific Trade Center
190 S. King Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

February 13, 1979

Mr. Sidney Fuke, Planning Director
Hawaii County Planning Department
25 Aupuni Street

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Dear Mr. Fuke:

Enclosed is a Notice of Land Use Commission meeting and the
Agenda for the Meeting.

Please note that petitions

V' sP79-330 - MINOLU R. CHENG . M.D.

SP79-331 - STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

SP79-332 - STANLEY S. SHIMIZU

SP79-334 - HENRY OPUKAHAIA SCHOOL

SP78-292 - GARY'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, INC.

A78-441 PACIFIC HAWAIIAN, LTD.

will be acted on at that time.

Should you have any questions on these matters, please contact
this office.

Very truly yours,

Enclosure - Agenda




STATE OF HAWAII
LAND USE COMMISSION
Suite 1795
Pacific Trade Center
190 S. King Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

February 13, 1979

MINOLU R. CHENG, M.D.
P. O. Box 879
Kailua-Kona, Hawaii 96740

Dear Dr. Cheng:

Enclosed is a Notice of Land Use Commission meeting and the
Agenda for the Meeting.

Please note that petition

SP79-330 - MINOLU R. CHENG, M. D.

will be acted on at that time.

Should you have any questions on this matter, please contact
this office.

Very truly yours,

ORDAN FURUTANI
Executive Officer

Enclosure - Agenda



I. ACTION

l.

STATE OF HAWAII
LAND USE COMMISSION

NOTIFICATION OF LAND USE COMMISSION MEETING

DATE, TIME & PLACE

February 21, 1979 - 9:30 a.m.
Conference Room, 9th Floor
Kamamalu Building
250 South King Street
Honolulu, Hawaii

A78-442 - Mitsugi and Fusako Yamamura (Maui) (Hearing Officer)

To reclassify approximately 5.6 acres of land presently
in the Agricultural District into the Rural District at
Haiku, Maui for a residential subdivision.

SP79-329 - Kauai Bible Church (Kauail)

To allow the establishment of a church on approximately
1.25 acres of land situated within the State Land Use
Agricultural District at Omao, Koloa, Kauai.

SP79-330 - Minolu R. Cheng (Hawaii)

To allow the establishment of a medical office on
approximately .934 acre of land situated within the
State Land Use Rural District at Keauhou lst, North Kona,
Hawaii.

SP79-331 - State of Hawaii, Department of Education (Hawaii)

To allow the continued use of three (3) school sites
situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District
at Honaunau, Hookena and Kohala for public educational
purposes.

SP79-332 - Stanley S. Shimizu (Hawaii)

To allow the establishment of a 50' x 60' freezer/office
building on one (1) acre of land situated within the
State Land Use Agricultural District at Keei 2nd, South
Kona, Hawaii.

SP79-334 - Henry Opukahaia School (Hawaii)

To allow the establishment of a private school on ten (10)
acres of land situated within the State Land Use Agricul-
tural District at Keaau, Puna, Hawaii.



13 " BPT 8™
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292 - Gary's Automotive Service, Inc. (Hawaii)

To extend the life of the Special Permit from five (5)
years to ten (10) years to allow the establishment of

an auto body repair shop, truck repair and vehicle
storage area on approximately four (4) acres of land
situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District
at Waikoloa, South Kohala, Hawaii.

8. A78-441 - Pacific Hawaiian, Ltd. (Hawaii)

To reclassify approximately 8.0 acres of land presently
in the Agricultural District into the Urban District at
Ponahawai, South Hilo, Hawaii for a neighborhood shopping
center.

II. MISCELLANEOUS

1. Adoption of Minutes

2. Meeting Schedule

2/13/79 - A COPY OF THIS AGENDA WAS MAILED TO ALL PERSONS AND
ORGANIZATIONS ON THE ATTACHED MAILING LISTS:

l.

STATEWIDE 2. HAWAII 3. MAUI 4. KAUAI



PLANNING DEPARTMENT

26 AUPUNI STREET +« HILO, HAWAII 98720 HERBERT T. MATAYOSHI

Mayor

COUNTY OF SIDNEY M. FUKE
HAWAII Director
DUANE KANUHA

Deputy Director

January 23, 1979

Mr. Gordan Furutani
Executive Officer
Land Use Commission
190 South King Street T
Honolulu, HI 96813 W

Dear Mr. Furutani:

Special Permit Application =
Petitioner: Minolu R. Cheng

In accordance with Chapter 205, Section 205-6, Hawaii Revised
Statutes, we are transmitting the decision and findings of the
County Planning Commission on the above application.

The special permit request was to allow the establishment of
a medical office on 0.934 acre of land situated within the State
Land Use Rural District at Keauhou lst, North Kona, Hawaii,
Tax Map Key 7-8-07:32.

The Planning Commission at a duly advertised public hearing
held on November 16, 1978 in the First Hawaiian Bank Meeting
Room, Kailua, North Kona, Hawaii, discussed the subject request.
The Commission on December 14, 1978 voted to recommend the
approval of the Special Permit to the Land Use Commission based
on the following findings:

That the proposed use shall not be contrary to the
objectives sought to be accomplished by the Land Use Law
and Regulations. The objectives of the Land Use Law and
Regulations are to preserve, protect and encourage the
development of lands in the State for those uses to which
these lands are best suited in the interest of the public
health and welfare of the people of the State of Hawaii.
The subject property is within the State Land Use Rural
district. Areas within this district consist of small
farms and/or low density residential uses where "city-like"



Mr.

Gordan Furutani

Page 2

concentrations of people, structures, streets, and urban
level of services are absent, and where small farms are
intermixed with the low density residential lots. Keauhou
Village, which encompasses the subject property, includes
single family dwellings, agricultural activities, a store,
service station, and the old Keauhou School site.

The proposed medical facility will be small in scale,
designed in keeping with the low density character of the
area, and will provide a necessary service to the community.
Medical health services are an essential part of community
life and its ready availability to the residents in the
area is especially valuable in treating emergency situations.
Thus, the proposed medical facility can become an integral
part of the rural community. Further, the proposed medical
facility also includes a residential unit for the use of
the petitioner. The petitioner, in essence, proposes to
establish a residential-medical or a "live-in" doctor
situation. This combination will assure that activities
on the subject property will be conducted in such a manner
as to be consistent with the residential character of the
area. Based on the nature and scale of the proposed
development it is determined that it will be ancillary to
community needs, compatible with the rural character of the
area, and therefore consistent with the intent of the State
Land Use Rural designation for Keauhou Village.

That the proposed use will not unreasonably burden
public agencies in providing public utilities and facil-
ities. All essential utilities are available to the
subject property. Access to the subject property would
be via the Mamalahoa Highway which connects with Kuakini
Highway approximately 1,000 feet north of the subject
area. In this vicinity, Mamalahoa Highway has a variable
pavement width of 18 to 20 feet. The pavement is currently
in poor condition. However, the portion of the Mamalahoa
Highway fronting the subject property to the intersection
with Kuakini Highway has been programmed for resurfacing
next year. Given the planned improvement of Mamalahoa
Highway, its relatively uncongested traffic condition, and
the small scale of the proposed use, it is not anticipated
that the approval of the subject request will create
traffic problems in this area. Further, as access to
the property will be limited to the Mamalahoa Highway only,
the approval of the subject request should not adversely
affect Kuakini Highway.



Mr. Gordan Furutani

Page 3

That the proposed use is not anticipated to adversely

affect surrounding properties. Due to the relatively
small size and character of the proposed medical facility,
it is not anticipated to generate unusual amounts of
traffic, noise or visual intrusion. Through conditions of
approval measures may be imposed to further minimize these
potential impacts.

The favorable recommendation was also subject to the
following conditions:

l.

The use of the medical facility shall be limited to
one (1) doctor and his or her staff, and (1)
dwelling unit.

That the residential unit can only be occupied
by the doctor utilizing the medical facility.

That a minimum of fifteen (15) parking stalls shall
be provided on-site.

That the design of any and all structures shall be
consistent with the rural-residential character of
the area.

That no direct access off Kuakini Highway shall be
permitted. All access shall be off the Mamalahoa
Highway.

That the plan approval process shall be complied with.
The petitioner, or his authorized representative,
shall submit plans for plan approval within one (1)
year from the effective date of the Special Permit.
Construction shall commence within one (1) year from
the receipt of final plan approval and shall be
completed within two (2) years thereafter.

That the Special Permit shall be recorded in the
Bureau of Conveyances within 60 days of its effective
date.

Should the use of the property change from the proposed
medical-residential use, the Special Permit shall auto-
matically become null and void.



Mr. Gordan Furutani
Page 4

9. That all other applicable rules, regulations and require-
ments shall be complied with.

Should any of the foregoing conditions not be met the Special
Permit may be deemed null and void.

Enclosed are copies of the Exhibits from the subject docket.
Sincerely,
77
Wilfiam F. Mielcke
Chairman, Planning Commission
WFM:1b
Enclosures

cc: Minolu R. Cheng, M.D.
Land Use Division, DPED



LIST OF EXHIBITS - MINOLU R. CHENG, M. D.

A. Application form

A-1l. Applicant's transmittal 9/15/78

A-2. Applicant's location map

B Departmental Acknowledgement letter 9/22/78
Cee Memo to the agencies 9/22/78

/D Water Supply 9/29/78

‘E. Highways, DOT 10/2 (received by Planning Dept.)
F. Letter from the applicant 9/29/78

G. Letter to the applicant 10/5/78

H. Highways, DOT 10/2/78

I. Education 10/2/78

J.s Public Works 10/2/78

K Police 10/5/78

Liis Soil Conservation Service 10/5/78

M. Health 10/10/78

N. P & R 10/17/78

Ois Agricultural 10/17/78

P. Fire 10/18/78

Qs Letter to the applicant 10/31/78

Q-1. Public Hearing Notice

R. Letter to surrounding property owners 11/3/78
R-1. Map sent to surrounding property owners

R-2. List of surrounding property owners

Se Letter to Doran Richards, First Hawaiian Bank 11/13/78

T. Voting Sheet - closed hearing



Uls Minutes 11/16/78

V. Transcript 11/16/78

W. Letter to the applicant 11/17/78
X. Letter to the applicant 12/4/78

LETTERS READ INTO THE RECORD AT THE PUBLIC HEARING

Y Petition signed by various property owners opposing the
the Special Permit Application of Minolu R. Cheng
11/14/78

Z. Naomi Matsuoka - Opposing application 11/9/78

AA. Letter to Naomi Matsuoka 11/17/78
BB. Staff Background

CC. Staff Recommendation

DD. Location Map

EE. Plot Plan

FF. Photographs

GG. Voting Sheet

HH. Minutes 12/14/78



PLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT
COUNTY OF HAWAI I

PLANNING DEPARTMENT - PLANNING COMMISSION

APPL ICANT: MINOLU R. CHENF M.D,
APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE: / ane. U
ADDRESS : P.0. BOX 879

KATLUA-KONA, HAWAII 96740
TELEPHONE : 329-2215

TAX MAP KkgY: 7-8-07-32 AREA: (0,934 AC
(Siae of Parcel)

6mER: MINOLU R, CHENG,M.D,

OWNER'S SIGNATURE: (gd//’? <ij£;2nﬂ

APPLICANT'S INTEREST, |F NOT OWNER:

REQUESTED USE: _ Professional and residential

APPLICANT'S REASON(S) FOR REQUESTING SPECIAL PERMIT: (Please attach)
NOTE: The applicant must show that:

(a) such use shall not be contrary to the objectives sought to be
accomplished by the Land Use Law and Regulations;

(b) the desired use shall not adversely affect surrounding properties;

(c) such use shall not unreasonably burden public agencies to provide
roads and streets, sewers, water, drainage, schoo! improvements, and
police and fire protection;

(d) unusual condlitions, trends, and needs have arisen since the district
boundaries and regulations were established;

(e) the land upon which the proposed use Iis sought is unsuited for the
uses permitted within the district;

(f) the proposed use will not substantially alter or change the essential
character of the land and the present use; and

(g) the proposed use will make the highest and best use of the land
involved for the public welfare.

THIS APPLICATION MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY:

(a) 16 copies of the completed application form with attachments.

(b) 16 copies of a location map.

(c) 16 coples of a site plan wlth exlsflng and proposed uses. Lleyqa+
(d) any additional Information.

(e) $100.00 processing fee.

For Officlal Use:

Date received
120th day
Public Hearing date
Action date ;

To Land Use Commission i

\o. 3 2/75 311 A
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September 22, 1978

Dr. Minolu R. Cheng
P. O. Box 879
Kailua-Xcona, HI 96740

Dear Dr. Cheng:

Special Permit - Medical Office
TMK: 7-8-07:32

This is to acknowledge receipt on September 20, 1978,
of the above described special permit application.

The County Planning Commission shall conduct a public hearing
on the request within a period of not less than thirty (30) nor
more than one hundred twenty (120) days from the receipt of the
application. The Planning Commission shall then act on the
application not earlier than fifteen (15) days after the public
hearing but within a reasonable time thereafter. Should the
Planning Commission recommend favorably on the request, it will
then be forwarded to the State Land Use Commission for final
action.

However, the Planning Commission may deny the request if it
is found that the proposed use does nct meet the special permit
guidelines. In this case, their decision is final. In accordance
with the provisicns of Chapter 205-6, Hawaii Revised Statutes, a
denial by the Planning Commission may be appealable to the Circuit
Court of the circuit in which the land is situated, in this case,
the Third Circuit Court.

Notice of the time and place of the public hearing shall be
fcrwarded when the application is scheduled for Commission action.

Upon preliminarily reviewing your application, we have found

that additional informatiocm is needed to adequately understand your
request. Specidically, please submit to us information regarding

LIBT3

[SEP 2 5 1970



Dr. Minolu R. Cheng -2- September 22, 1978

the number of physicians and associated personnel who would be
working at the proposed facility. In addition, would medical
services be limited to general practice or would specialized
sexrvices be offered; would any laboratory work be conducted;
and would the proposed structure be used as a residence as well
as a medical office.

We would appreciate receiving this information at your
earliest convenience. Should any questions arise, please contact
Ilima Piianaia or Keith Kato of this department at 961-8288.

Sincerely,

SIDNEY FUKE
Planning Director

IP:gs

cc: State Land Use Commission
DPED - Land Use Division

farp 25 1178

e be



MEMORANDUM:

PLANNING DEPARTMENT — County  of Hawaii, Hilo, Hawaii 96720
To: DPW R &D Fire
’ DWs P & R Soil Conserv. Date: Sept. 22, 1978
Highways DOE Dept. of Ag.
P-aLtQ Pol;cg\ Helco

™ L B R \
X A N\ \Y NN\
Eroi: Pl *Eiﬁgkdié%étord\J“*“J
Subject: SPECIAL PERMIT APPLICATION
Medical Office Within State Land Use Rural District

Minolu R. Cheng, M. D.
TMK: 7-8-07:32

The attached application for Special Permit is forwarded
for your review. May we have your written comments within two
weeks.

Thank you very much.

gs
Attach.

ELdiBIT €

SEP 25 1978
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Rl j DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY e COUNTY OF HAWAII

P. O. BOX 1820 . HILO, HAWAILI 96720 . 25 AUPUNI STREET

September 29, 1978

TO: Planning Department
FROM: Manager

SUBJECT: SPECIAL PERMIT APPLICATION
MEDICAL OFFICE WITHIN STATE LAND USE RURAL DISTRICT
MINOLU R. CHENG, M. D.
TAX MAP KEY 7-8-07:32

Based on the floor layout of the subject medical office, it appears
that water usage for this facility should be no greater than that
required for normal single-family residential use.

There is an 8-inch waterline along Mamalahoa Highway that will be able
to service this facility.

~

/(//,;,3, Lq,ub

Akira Fujfimoto
Manager
{
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STATE OF HAWAII

DEFARTMENT OF TRANSGITORRTATION
HIGHWAYS DIVISION
HAWAII DISTRICT
50 MAKAALA STREFT

P O BOX 4277

HILO HAWAIlI 96720

XXXXKKXXXRNAX

LIKECTOR

Ryokichi Higashiong}\f.\w

DELUTY DIivFCTOM:

DUIGLAS & SAKAMOTO
WALLACE AOK|

Charles 0. Swanson

IN RLI'LY RLFER TO

LT-H 78"201179

September 29, 1978

MEMORANDUM :
T0: Director, Planning Department
. County of Hawaii
FROM: District Engineer, Hawaii
SUBJECT: ( - ) Change of Zone Application
() Variance Application
() Subdivision /\pp]jcatioﬁ No.
( %) Special Permit Applicatiom

Minclu Re Chong, ie De
TMKS 7=S=07832

Wo have no objoctions on the proposed action but no access shall bs
p\,mitma off tho Hawaii Bolt Roed, Projoct llo. F=011-l(4)e Ths parcel
doos not have any nccess rightsoff the Hawaldl Bolt Roade

CHAS "L. SCHUSTER

Dnelosure

\ FeRapag m nees
B IS 6L e )
fob ko b pdp E
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Minolu R. Cheng, M.D.

P. O. Box 879
Kailua-Kona, Hawaii 96740

September 29, 1978

Sidney M. Fuke
County of Hawaii
Planning Department
25 Aupuni Street
Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Re: Special Permit-Medical Office
TMK: 7-8-07: 32
Dear Mr. Fuke,

Thank you for your prompt reply on my application for
the permit of my proposed office building.

At the present time, my proposed office will be having
only one doctor and one associated personnel. As for future
development, on the proposed plan, a proposed pharmacy or
another professional office (for example: Lawyer, Accountant,
or another physician) is being considered on office #2: see
attached plan.

My practice will be Acute Family Care and General Surgery
which will benefit most of the trauma cases in the area.

Only limited office laboratory work will be performed and
I will not have a complete commercial type of laboratory set up.

The second floor of my proposed office building will be
used for a residence as per plan submitted.

If you should have any aquestions, please do not hesitate

to contact me again,
Yours tr%{%il
et ML

Minolu R. Chena, M.D.
MRC: cs
enclosures

yre
b

Eiibll F



October 5, 1978

Dr, Minolu R. Cheng
Ps 0. Box 879
Keilua=-Kona, Hawaii 96740

Dear Dr. Cheng:
Special Fermit Application

Medical Office
THEs T=B-07:32

This is to acknowledge receipt of your letter dated September 29,
1978, providing us with the additional informetion we had recquested
regerding your application and the floor plens for the proposed
structure.

Your prompt response to our reguest is appreciated.
&
Sincerely,

\ L oL P\\ N
\L &‘mf\,}‘j, " 3‘\ M\(\ ’

SIDNEY FUYE
Director

PRe gy g

I\.‘-.{;Jfé;ggi

gy ®

1978
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‘ * Ryokichi Higashionna,Ph
oy XXAKXKXXRXXK

LTOR

GEORGE R ARIYOSHI
GCOVERNOR

DEFPUTY DIRECTONS

DOUGLAS S SAKAMOTO
WALLACE AOKI

Charles 0. Swanson

STATE OF HAWAII

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
HIGHWAYS DIVISION

HAWAII DISTRICT IN REPLY REFER TO
50 MAKAALA STREET
P o BRK 4217 LT-H  78-2.1179

HILO, HAWAI! 96720

MEMORANDUM :
TO: Director, Planning Department
‘ County of Hawaii

FROM: District Engineer, Hawaii

SUBJECT: ( ) Change of Zone Application
() variance Application
() Subdivision Application No.
(X ) Special Permit Applicatiom

Minolu R Cheng, 1o Do
THKs 7=S-07:32

We. have no obdecuong on the proposed action but no access shall be
permitted off the Hawaii Belt Road, Froject No, F-011-l{4). The parcel
does not have any access rightsoff the Hawaii Belt Road,

AP

CHAS L. SCHUST Ek

Enclosure '
- EXIBIT H
fa i N
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HAUALL UISIKIUY
Department of Education
ite:  October 2, 1978

TO: Hawaii County
Department of Planning

FROM: Hawaii District
Department of Education

SUBJECT: Special Permit Application, Medical Office Within State Land Use Rural District

T™MK: 7-8-07:32 Minolu R. Cheng, M. D.
Hawaii District Department of Education has no objection to the application.

Hawaii District Department of Education recommends the following:

For/the Department of Education:
Schools Affected: P23 2 Ty

Herbert S. tatanabe
Staff Specialist
Business & Facilities

= T ET A oov 7
C YW EIE Ry E
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
COUNTY OF HAWAII

HILO, HAWAII
DATE  October 2, 1978
///mmw@w
TO : Planning Department "
FROM Chief Engineer
SUBJECT: Application for Special Permit

Applicant: Minolu R. Cheng, M.D.
Locations Keauhou, North Kona, Hawaii
TMK: 7-8~07:32

The construction of this office would increase traffic to the
Mamalahoa Highway which is in poor condition.

75 EDWARD HARADA, Chief Engineer

EXEiBIT O
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POLICE DEPARTMENT

COUNTY OF HAWAII
349 KAPIOLANI STREET
HILO, HAWAII 86720

OURREFERENCE 11761

GUY A. PAUL

YOUR REFERENCE CHIEF OF POLICE

October 5, 1978

TO  : SIDNEY FUKE, PLANNING DIRECTOR
FROM : GUY A. PAUL, CHIEF OF POLICE

SUBJECT: SPECIAL PERMIT - MEDICAL OFFICE WITHIN STATE LAND USE RURAL DISTRICT
MINOLU R. CHENG, M.D.

TMK: 7-8-07:32

The application submitted by the above applicant has been reviewed and
from the police standpoint, we can foresee no adverse effects from the
requested land use.

GUY(A. PAUL
(cm F OF POLICE

RG/RLP/k
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
SOIL CONSERVATION SERVICE

P, 0, Por €635, Xealakekna, Hil 9€750 October 5, 1977

¥

Sidney . “uke, Director
Planning Tepartment
“ounty of Hawaii

Iilo, Hawaii 96720

Dear Mr, fuke,

Subject: SP°TAL PASMIT A LIATTON
Medical Office Within State lLand ''se Rural listrict
Minolu ®, Cheng, M. D,
THX: 7-R-07: 32 °

Subject apnlication hasb een reviewed and we have no cormments to
offer at this time.
te

*hank you for the onnortunity to review this documen

Sincerely,

Wi

Ly
B

District Conserf

P v np Borg
o a Lo f ""? ) l
b AN 23 x i E‘F



MEMORANDUM: s ®

PLANNING =~ DEPARTMENT -~ County of Hawaii, Hilo, Hawaii 96720
To: DPW R &D Fire
DWS P & R Soil Conserv. Date: gept. 22, 1978
Highways DOE Dept. of Ag.

’ Vviealth Police c ()&)
From: ° Planning Directo ‘
Subject: SPECIAL PERMIT APRLICATION
’ Medical Office Within State Land Use Rural District

Minolu R. Cheng, M. D.
TMK: 7-8-07:32

The attached application for Special Permit is forwarded
for your review. May we have your written comments within two

weeks.

v

Thank you very much.

. g8

Attach. : \
Department of Health
Hilo, Hawaii

October 10, 1978

COMMENTS

We would 1like to defer our comments until our field staff
investigate ground water concerns relative to the Kahaluu
shaft.

HAROLD MATSU

Chief Sanitarian, Hawaii

|



TO:

FRCOM:

RE:

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS & RECREATION
COUNTY OF HAWAII

Date: October 17, 1978

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS & RECREATION

( )CHANGE OF ZONE APPLICATION

(X )SPECTIAL PERMIT APPLICATION - Medical Office/Residence
( )USE PERMIT APPLICATION

( )VARIANCE

O

FOR : Minolu Cheng T™K 7-8-07:32

We have no adverse comments to offer on the subject request,

Milton T. Hakoda
Director



GEORGE R. ARIYOSHI
GOVERNOR

STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

1428 SO. KING STREET
HONOLULU, HAWAII 96814

October 17, 1978

MEMORANDUM

To: Mr. Sidney Fuke, Director

Hawaii County Planning Department

Subject:  Special Permit Application
Medical Office
Minolu R. Cheng, M.D.
TMK: 7-8-07:32

The Department of Agriculture has reviewed the subject
application and notes that the parcel in question is
located in the State Land Use Rural District.

has no comments to offer at this time.

opportunity to comment.

» We i;} regiate th
// / B, )
\\\““““ Aﬁ%é@/T\\;fv

JOHN FARIAS ,JR /
Chairman, Board of Agriculture

JOHN FARIAS. JR
CHAIRMAN BOARD OF AGRICULTURE

YUKIO KITAGAWA
DEPUTY TO THE CHAIRMAN

BOARD MEMBERS

SIDNEY G U GOO
MEMBER - AT - LARGE

ERNEST F MORGADO
MEMBER - AT - LARGE -

SUZANNE D. PETERSON
MEMBER - AT - LARGE

FEDERICO GALDONES
HAWAII MEMBER

JAMES E NISHIDA
KAUAI MEMBER

FRED M OGASAWARA
MAUI MEMBER

WILLIAM Y. THOMPSON
EX OFFICIO MEMBER

This agency

EYIRiT O
L/\.wiéjs 1



HAWAII FIRE DEPARTM..NT e county oF rawai e 420, HAWAR _ 5720

/%ﬂm@ﬂ/m

: Planning Department

DATE October 18, 1978

FROM : Hiroshi Shishido, Deputy Fire Chief

SUBJECT:  SPECIAL PERMIT APPLICATION
MEDICAL OFFICE WITHIN STATE LAND USE RURAL DISTRICT
MINOLU R. CHENG, M. D.
TMK: 7-8-07:32

We have no objections to the above application.

Fire protection is provided by Kailua and Captain Cook Fire Stations.
Hydrants are located on Mama]ahoa Highway.

Linl shle,

HIRGSHI SHISHIDO
DEPUTY FIRE CHIEF

HS/mo

@mi

L;\uu‘wg |



October 31, 1978

Minolu R. Cheng, M. D.
P. O. Box 879
Kgilua—Kona, HI 96740

Dear Dr. Cheng:
Notice of a Public Hearing

Special Permit Application
Tax Map Key 7-8-07:32

This is to inform you that your request has been scheduled
for a public hearing. Said hearing among others will be held
beginning at &P:00 a.m. on Thursday, November 16, 1978, in the
First Hawaiian Bank Meeting Room, Kailua, North Kona, Hawaii.

The presence of a representative will be appreciated in order
that all guestions relative to the request may be clarified.

A copy of the hearing notice and agenda are enclosed for
your information.

Sincerely,
& »; n o B "
":.-"\. PA N\ T \.’ \‘\_(‘:\.\A‘ 2 N

) Lo’ U2, ,/;’\ 1) el \j N ’.JJ‘{.‘J
{

Sidney M. Fuke

Director

gs
Enclosures

cc: State Land Use Commission
Dept. of Planning & Economic Development

T
ik
i

Al Q

oV 1 1978
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PUBLIC HEARINGS
PLANNING COMMISSION
COUNTY OI' HAWAII
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of public héarings to be held by the
Planning Conmission of the County of Hawaii in accordance with the
.provisions of Section 5-4.3 of the Charter of the County of Hawaii.

PLACE: First Hawaiian Bank Meeting Room, Kailua,
North Xona

DATE: Thursday, November 16, 1978

TIME: Ttem # 1l: 9:00 a.mnm.
Item #2-3: 10:00 a.m.

The purpose of the public hearings is to afford all interested
persons a reasonable opportunity to be heard on the following requests:

h PETITIONER: STATE OF HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
AIR TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES DIVISION

LOCATION: Ke—~ahole Airport and surrounding lands and
the Natural Encergy Laboratory of Hawaii Site,
'O'oma lst, Kalaoa lst-4th, Hamanamana and
Haleohiu, North Kona.

TMK s 7-3-43: portion of 3, 6-22, 28-30,
portion of 32, 34-36.

PURPOSE: Change of zoﬁe for 822.66 acres of land
from an Open (0) to a General Industrial
l-acre (MG-la) zoned district.

r PETITIONER: MINOLU R. CHENG

LOCATION: On the mauka side of Kuakini Highway,

approximately 400 feet south of the old

Keauhou School site, Keauhou lst, North Kona.



- L
TMK: 7-8-07:32
PURPOSE: Special Permit to allow the establishment
. of a medical office on 0.934 acre of land
situated within the State Land Use Rural
District.
3 PETITIONER: STATE OF HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

LOCATIONS AND
TMK: a) Honaunau School, Ke'ei 2nd, South Kona,

TMK: ™ 8~3=13:21;
b) Ho'okena School, Kauhako, South Kona,
TMK: B8-6-10:9 & 12;
¢) Kohala School, Pahoa, North Kohala,
TMK: 5-5-8:24 & 42.

PURPOSE: Special Permit to allow the continued use
of three sites situated within the State
Land Use Agricultural District for public
educational purposes.

Maps showing the general locations and boundaries of the &areas
under consideration and/or plans of the proposed developments are on
file in the office of the Planning Department in the County Building
at 25 Aupuni Street, Hilo, Hawaii, and are open to inspection during
office hours. All comments should be filed with the Planning Commis-
sion before that date, or in person at the public hearing.

PLANNING COMMISSION,

WILLIAM F., MIELCKE, Chairman
By SIDNLEY M. FUKE

Planning Director

(Hawaii Tribune-Herald: November 6 & 14, 1978)



PLANNING DEPARTMENT

256 AUPUNI STREET e« HILO, HAWAII 96720 HERBERT T. MATAYOSHI

S Mayor
COUNTY OF v "UKE
SIDNEY M. FUKE

HAWAII Director

DUANE KANUHA
Deputy Director

November 3, 1978

Dear Property Owner: (TMK:

Special Permit Application
Keauhou lst, North Kona, Hawaii
Tax Map Key 7-8-07:32

You are hereby notified that a request for a special permit
to allow the establishment of a medical office on 0.934 acre of
land situated within the State Land Use Rural District has been
submitted by the petitioner, Minolu R. Cheng.

The property involved is located on the mauka side of
Kuakini Highway, approximately 400 feet south of the old Keauhou
School site, Keauhou lst, North Kona, Hawaii.

A public hearing on the subject among others will be held
beginning at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, November 16, 1978 in the
First Hawaiian Bank Meeting Room, Kailua, North Kona, Hawaii.

You are invited to comment on the application at the hearing
or submit written comments prior to the hearing.

Sincerely,

T

SIDNEY FUKE
Director

lgv
Enclosure
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CONETRUCTION OF A MEPICAL OFFICE
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November 13, 1978

Ms. Doran Riichard
1100 First Hawaiian Bank Building
Honolulu, HI 96813

Déar Ms. Richard:

Per your telephone conversation with my staff member, attached
are the letters this office has receivedi from Minolu R. Cheng, M.D.
regarding his Special Permit request.

Please be advised that remittance for the copies is not neces-
sary.

Should you have any additional questions, please do not hesitate
to contact this office.

Sincerely,

G\ GA b.\}:é L S
SIDNEY FU

Director

EC:1lwo

Attachments

PR 5 NOV 1 4 1000
oy ‘ ’ 5 1978
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RECORD OF VOTING

PLANNING COMMISSION

County of Hawaii
Date November 16, 1978

Petitioner Minolu Cheng, M. D. - Special Permit

Preliminary hearing _lfilPublic hearing _;___Request
ACTION: __ Approve i \
Deny M/
Defer \
Continue

Schedule for public hearing

Other:

Acti

Commissioners Aye No | Excused Abstain

FUJIMOTO, Shigeru

HANLEY, J. Walsh o

JITCHAKU, Lorraine R.

MURAKAMI, Haruo ; v/’

NAKANO, Bert H.

ORITA, Alfredo

S -
PARIS, William Jr. ’y‘”&\ _

SAKAMOTO, Charles W 4

MIELCKE, William F. - EYriED
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PLANNING COMMISSION

Planning Department
- County of Hawaii

. MINUTES : a;f;xig‘ Ld
November 16, 1978 LANIDIE

The Planning Commission met in regular session at 9:00 a.m. in
the First Hawaiian Bank Meeting Room, Kailua, North Kona, Hawaii,
with' Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding, and at 7:00 p.m. in
the Waimea Civic Center Conference Room, Waimea, South Kohala,
Hawaii, with Chairman Pro Tem William J. Paris, Jr., presiding.

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: J. Walsh Hanley

(Left at 3:47 p.m.) : Haruo Murakami
Shigeru Fujimoto
Bert H. Nakano Ex-officio Member
Lorraine R. Jitchaku Akira Fujimoto
Alfredo Orita € Deputy Corporation
William J. Paris, Jr. Reginald Minn

Charles H. Sakamoto v

Sidney M. Fuke, Planning Director

Ilima Piianaia, Planner

Norman Hayashi, Planner (Left at 3:47 p.m.)
: Wllllam Moore, Planner

Galen Kuba representing Ex-offico Member Edward Harada

and approximately 16 people in attendance at 9:00 a.m.,
14 people at 10:00 a.m., 7 people at 11:00 a.m., 7
people at 1: 30 p.m., 30 people at 7:00 p.m. and 30
people at 7:30 p.m.



County Council with the conditions as outlined by the staff. A
roll call vote was taken and motion carried with seven ayes.

AMEND PDP NO. 8 Public hearings on the request of Linco Con-
LINCO CONSTRUC- struction Co., Inc. to amend Planned Develop-
EEQN CO., INC., ment Permit No. 8 which allowed the submission
WAIKOLOA VILLAGE, of plans for a 230-unit condominium project
WAIKOLOA, SOUTH for plan approval. The amendment is to reduce
KOHALA the number of units to 124 to be contained

within 9 structures in lieu of the 11 structures
originally planned. Also requested is a one-year time extension
until December 6, 1979, to allow the submission of plans for plan
approval. The area involved is located along the west side of
Lua-Kona Street, approximately 600 feet south of the Lua-Kula Street-
Laie Street intersection, Waikoloa Village, Waikoloa, South Kohala,
TMK: 6-8-03:11.

Staff corrected the agenda to read 12 structures instead of 9 and
presented background on file.

The petitioner's representative, S. R. Dick Schenck, explained that
the reason for their request for less units was because they
decided to get into a more deluxe market and therefore tried to
obtain better views for each of the units. He added that he

felt if the time extension is granted, he was sure they would be
able to get the project going within the allowed time and also

that a copy of their deed has already been filed with the Real
Estate Commission.

There was no one from the pubiic testifying on the application.

It was moved by Commissioner Orita and seconded by Commissioner
Nakano that the public hearing be closed; motion was carried.

At this time, 10:22 a.m., the Commission took up the public hearings
scheduled for 10:00 a.m.

SPECIAL PERMIT Public hearing on the application of Minolu R.
// MINOLU R. CHENG Cheng for a Special Permit to allow the

KEAUHOU 1ST, establishment of a medical office on 0.934

NORTH KONA acre of land situatedwithin the State Land

Use Rural District. The property involved
is located on the mauka side of Kuakini Highway, approximately
400 feet south of the old Keauhou School site, Keauhou lst,
North Kona, TMK: 7-8-07:32.

Staff presented background on file and read into the record a
letter from Mrs. Naomi Matsuoka dated November 9, 1978.

The petitioner, Minolu R. Cheng, pointed out he was proposing

20 parking stalls which is more than sufficient; his working
hours will be from 9 a.m. to 12 noon and 2 p.m. to 5 p.m., mainly
by appointments, with Wednesday, Saturday and Sunday off.

Upon the staff's questioning of his plans for the aditional office
space of about 1200 square feet of area, Dr. Cheng said possible
uses he considered were a pharmacy, a compatible professional office
or another doctor's office; however he has decided on another
doctor's office. He pointed out to the staff that he has not

found a suitable or available commercial area between Kailua and
Kealakekua for the establishment of a doctor's office.



Under public testlmOny, Mr. Leon Sterling, Esther Delarles, Lily
Kong, Ann Madawi and Mrs. Ronald Kahaliononi spoke against the

application because of their traffic concerns.

Mr. Sterling said

there were other commercial areas available and Mrs. Delaries
" presented the Commission with a petition (on file).

Public Works'

representative, Galen Kuba, pointed out that although

their Department does have plans to resurface and improve certain
bends of the road, there are no funds available to proceed with

the plans.

Mrs. Carol Sasaki, medical receptionist for Dr. Cheng, pointed

out that their facility will have sufficient parking and commented
that because Kona is growing so fast congestion would occur anywhere
you put an office, and not because of Dr. Cheng's proposed facility,
which actually involves only a few cars.

With regard to Mrs. Delaires'

concern on how this proposed facility

would affect their real property taxes, Planning Director Fuke
"pointed out that it is something that will have to be determined
by the State Department of Taxation.

Dr. Cheng commented that if additional parking is not needed, he
intends to landsecape the other area and make it completely 1ndepen-
dent from the surroundlng areas.

Staff pointed out that the parking requirement for a doctor would

be four stalls

er doctor plus one for the residence.

Since

Dr. Cheng is intending to have another doctor come in with him,

he would be required to have a maximum of 9 stalls.

Staff added

that although Dr. Cheng has- proposed 20 parking stalls, the amount
of stalls will be determined at the time of plan approval, if
the request were approved.

Commissioner Paris pointed out that although he has found it is
a convenience to have a doctor in the neighborhood, if the majority
is against it, he will have to go along with the majority.

‘Dr. Cheng pointed out that although having another doctor would

provide better service and be a convenience for him, there is nothing

that would prevent him from operating alone.

It was moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and seconded by Commissioner
Paris that the public hearing be closed; motion was carried.

RECESS:
RECONVENED :

SPECIAL PERMIT
STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

KETEI 2ND, SOUTH
KONA: KAUHAKO,
SOUTH KONA; AND
PAHOA, NORTH
KOHALA :

The Chair called a short recess at 11:31 a.m.

‘The meeting reconvened at 11l:41 a.m.

Public hearing on the application of the State
of Hawaii Department of Education for a Special
Permit to allow the continued use of three
sites situated within the State Land Use Agr-
cultural District for public educational
purposes. The sites involved are: a)Honaunau
School, Ke'ei 2nd, South Kona, TMK: 8-3-13:21;
b) Ho'okena School, Kauhako, South Kona, TMK:
8-6-10:9 & 12; c) Kohala School, Pahoa, North
Kohala, TMK: 5-5-8:24 & 42.



PLANNING COMMISSION

Planning Department
County of Hawaii

HEARING TRANSCRIPT
November 16, 1978

A regularly advertised public hearing on the application of
Minolu R. Cheng, was called to order at 10:22 a.m. in the
Kealakehe School Cafetorium, Kealakehe, North Kona, Hawaii,
with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding.

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: J. Walsh Hanley
Shigeru Fujimoto Haruo Murakami
Bert H. Nakano
Lorraine R. Jitchaku Ex-officio Member
Alfredo Orita Akira Fujimoto
William J. Paris, Jr. " Deputy Corporation
Charles H. Sakamoto Counsel Reginald Minn

Sidney M. Fuke, Planning Director
Ilima Piianaia, Planner

Norman Hayashi, Planner

wWilliam Moore, Planner

Galen Kuba, representing Ex-officio Member Edward Harada

and approximately 14 people in attendance

CHAIRMAN: We'll proceed with the public hearings advertised
for 10:00 a.m. Public hearing on the application of Minolu R.
Cheng for a Special Permit to allow the establishment of a medical
office on 0.934 acre of land situated within the State Land Use
Rural District. The property involved is located on the mauka
side of Kuakini Highway, approximately 400 feet south of the old
Keauhou School site, Keauhou lst, North Kona, TMK: "~ 7-8-07:32.
Staff?

PITIANAIA: (Presented background on file and read into the
record a letter from Mrs. Naomi Matsuoka dated November 9, 1978.)
CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ilima. Before I ask the Commissicners
if they have any questions, is the applicant present?

CHENG: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Dr. Cheng. The Chair at this time would like

to ask if there is anyone in the audience who claims to be an
interested party. An interested party is one whose legal rights,
duties, or privileges will be determined or affected by this
proceeding. More specifically, a person has a right to inter-
vene if: (1) He has a property interest in the land in question.
If there is a cloud on the title to the land, this will not stop
the hearing. The party affected must obtain a court order stopping
the hearing; or (2) Lawfully resides on the land; or (3) Has or
can demonstrate that he will be so immediately affected by the
decision and that his interest is clearly distinguishable from
that of the general public.



Is there such an interested party who wishes to declare himself
at this time? Okay, Reverend Sterling, we will start with you,
if you will come to the microphone first. Reverend Sterling,
you may affirm to the oath. ,

STERLING: I do. To clarify - I'm Leon Sterling and I'm a
resident of Keauhou mauka. I will speak against the proposal.

CHAIRMAN: Leon, we're going to just at this time determine
if you are an interested party to be admitted in the case; other-
wise, we can take you just as part of the general public and
entertain your testimony at that time.

Do you have a property interest in the land?

STERLING: No, Mr. Chairman, I'm a resident in the area.
CHAIRMAN: No. You don't lawfully reside on the land that
Dr. Cheng has?

STERLING: No.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, can you demonstrate that you'll be so

immediately affected by the decision, that your interest is
clearly distinguishable from that of the general public?

STERLING: Yes, as I live on the mauka road.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Reverend Sterling, do you want to be admitted
as an interested party or do you want to just testify as a member
of the public? As an interested party, we'll go into a contested
case hearing and you will be able to call witnesses and cross-
examine witnesses as a party. »

STERLING: I don't know, maybe as a general public.

CHAIRMAN: Then I would suggest if it's all right, I would
suggest if it's agreeable to you that you just testify as a member
of the public and a resident in the immediate area. .

STERLING: All right. I go along with that.

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. The other persons who asked to be
admitted as an interested party, the same questions will be asked
to you. You will all be given an opportunity to testify under
the public hearing portion. It is only if you wish to become

and interested party to the application that we would like you

to identify yourself now.

PIIANAIA: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIRMAN: Yes.
PITIANAIA: It may be helpful for members of the public

here to explain that an interested party would have a right
to appeal an action by the Planning Commission for example.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, the point is well taken. Carol, you want
to be an interested party?

SASAKI: I think so.



CHAIRMAN: Okay, you may still testify. This is a public
hearing so we're going to invite you to testify, but if you
come in as an interested party, then we're going to go through
the complete contested case hearing procedures. That means
that you'll be able to put on a case and you will be able to
call witnesses, you'll be able to cross-examine the staff and
cross—-examine the Commission. It is a more formal procedure
that is almost like a judicial procedure. Now if we do not
follow this procedure, we would go through our regular Special
Permit procedure at which we first will ask the Commission if
they have any questions of the staff, then we will call the
applicant forward so that we can ask the applicant questions
about his application, and then we will invite public testi-
mony from those of you who are in the audience. Okay, so
unless you're prepared to proceed with calling witnesses and
cross—examining, then I would suggest that you just come up

as an interested member of the public.

SASAKI: I'll speak as a member of the public.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, is there anyone who wishes to be declared
an interested person? All right, we will then proceed. Com-
missioners, you have heard the staff's background report on

the Special Permit application of Dr. Minolu R. Cheng. Do you
have any questions of the staff concerning this application?

If there are no questions of the staff, at this time I would
like to call the applicant or a representative of the applicant
forward. Dr. Cheng, if you will raise your right hand please.
Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth on the
testimony you are about to give before the Hawaii County Planning
Commission?

CHENG: I do.
CHAIRMAN: Please state your. name into the microphone.
CHENG: Minolu R. Cheng. Medical service need is a con-

stant need. It's not just at war times and always one time or
another you need the medical service; and the doctor is trying
to improve the service to the community people. So as far as.
I feel, I didn't have any special objection to put an office
any place, but it just happens to be that it's my property. I
don't have any other property along this Kuakini Highway and to
me I think there shouldn't be any trouble to the surrounding
area because my type of practice little bit different. People
doesn't just walk in and come to see me. They got to have
appointment.

And my speak of seeing patients, about three or four patients

an hour. So I have provided 20 parking lots which is practically
my whole day's patient load. So as far as increasing the traffic
in the Mamalahoa Highway, I think probably four cars per hour
through that particular point, I don't think it's going to be
increasing any problems. And yet I was trying to establish one
entrance from the Kuakini Highway which can take care most of

the emergency patients, like the car accident; and that is my
type of practice, basically is surgery and trauma. Therefore,

it might still cut down the traffic. That people are thinking
that this is like a supermarket and that is not true; and yet,
our time of practice is from 9-12 and from 2-5. After 5 o'clock,
it quiet. So it will be increasing traffic and yet is practically
is independent kind, so will not give any surrounding neighbor or



anything any burden, you see, and yet constantly we only try
one thing, to help people. 1It's not just for my own benefit. I
don't have any benefit for just give service.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you, Dr. Cheng. The Commissioners
may have some questions for you. Dr. Cheng, do you visualize
your practice similar to the way Dr. Mar used to be set up in
Kona where you have your offices on the ground floor and your
residence would be on the top?

CHENG: This is the idea, thinking, because the people was.
getting older. So one of these days I will be getting older too,
you see. And the condition of increasing practice is reversible,
you see. When I come here I see about three or four patients a
day, now I see fifteen patients, and one of these days I may have
to see twenty patients, you see. So by the time I might be, not
feel, interested to drive all the way to come down and medical
service is constant, you see. So this is a idea in mind that I
might use the upstairs as my residential as time goes by and
sounds practical to me. '

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Dr. Cheng, now in your practice, you schedule
all of your patients by appointment so it's not a matter where
you have a lot of people driving up and waiting to get in to

see you? Usually your patients have set appointments and -?

CHENG: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Yes.

CHENG: Usually we do not take any walk-in patients unless
it's emergency.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, and the type of emergencies would -.

CHENG: Like bleeding, tféuma, and whatever lacerating
condition.

CHAIRMAN: Things that can be routinely handled in an office

that would not necessarily involve going directly to the hospital?

CHENG: People will go to the nearby facility as possible,
therefore as far as I feel actually it is benefit the neighbor
most.

CHAIRMAN: To the immediate neighbors right around you?

CHENG: Yes. Because the thing is you cannot help and
then go to Honolulu by airport because by that time it's too
late.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. Commissioners, do you have any
questions of Dr. Cheng? Yes, Commissioner Orita.

ORITA: Dr. Cheng, would you say that most of your patients
will be by appointment only?

CHENG : Yes.

ORITA: That is part of the reason why you think that the

traffic will be minimal?

CHENG: That is the reason why I try to keep away from the crowd,
because the Kona is a constant and is a rapid growing area and



if I tried to make the office down in the town eventually it will
be adding on more congestion.

ORITA: Yes, but Dr. Cheng you still would not deprive
anybody from coming to your office with or without appointments,
right?

CHENG: But that is emergency.
ORITA: No, but still yet you would deprive the public =-?
CHENG: Right. But the thing is I had been practice

selectively so I-do have that much, I know, I understand your
question. Okay, every patient going to come in without making
appointment and then just increasing the traffic.

ORITA: Right, but the traffic could increase if people

do come without making appointments.

CHENG: Traffic-that's increasing as the population increase.
CHAIRMAN: Commissioners? Yes, staff?

PIIANAIA: Dr. Cheng, on your plans that you submitted to our

office, you show about 1200 square feet of area which is identified
as an additional office space. What the Commission is considering
right now is basically for you to establish one office, although
you've shown another office which is not identified. Do you have
any idea whether this would be another office?

CHENG: In frame of mind is I'd like to have pharmacy down
there because every time the patient come and then get prescription
from there, but the thing is I cannot have competence or foresee
that I can obtain a pharmacy. But if that is the case I cannot
obtain a pharmacy I may just make a second compatible professional
office, like another doctor or whatever, just working certain

hours and will not be adding any noise to the neighbors.

PIIANAIA: Could you describe for us what you mean by a
pharmacy.

CHENG: Pharmacy is the place where they fill the prescrip-
tion or any medical needs.

PIIANAIA: How large a pharmacy do you plan?

CHENG: I don't think it would be bigger than Oshima.
CHAIRMAN: By bigger than Oshima you mean the pharmacy section
in the Oshima store?

CHENG: Right, right.

PIIANAIA: You're talking about a full line of pharmaceutical
services?

CHENG: I was thinking whatever to fulfill the community

needs as possible that's all.

CHAIRMAN: Dr. Cheng, I think one of the points that the
staff and some of the Commissioners are trying to determine
from you is that if this second office that is shown on your



plans is used for a pharmacy would the pharmacy mostly be dispensing
medication to your patients or do you see people having prescrip-
tions from other doctors driving to your office to have their
prescriptions filled?

CHENG: No, my main concern actually is only limited to my
patients as possible because that way increasing the traffic.

CHAIRMAN: So if you had a pharmacy then it would be basically
only for dispensing medication to your own patients?

CHENG: Right, but the thing is I might not follow through-
this plan because might be I have another doctor to work together
in the future but that is unknown.

CHAIRMAN: Unknown right now.

CHENG: Right, right. So I cannot answer the question.
CHAIRMAN: So possible uses would be another physician prac-
ticing with you?

CHENG: Or independent.

CHAIRMAN: Or independent?

CHENG: Yes.,

CHAIRMAN: Or a pharmacy or maybe a professional office like
a CPA or a lawyer?

CHENG: Right, right.

CHAIRMAN: That is what you're saying?

CHENG: That's what my planning.

CHAIRMAN: But you have no immediate plans for that?

CHENG: I have no immediately idea. But it definitely

will keep independent and privately as possible. Commissioners?
Yes, Commission Sakamoto.

SAKAMOTO: Dr. Cheng, what time will you be opened from

week days and weekends?

CHENG: From 9-12 and from 2-5 and Wednesday, Saturday,
Sunday off because I'm mainly a surgical doctor, you see.

SAKAMOTO:: So the pharmacy will be closed Saturday and Sunday?
CHENG: I think probably I will abandon that plan as a
pharmacy because that probably is not so good.

JITCHAKU: One question, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Jitchaku.

JITCHAKU: Dr. Cheng, you sort of I guess answered my question.

You are not a regular physican type of operation, you are a
specialist, is that it?



CHENG: I practice many surgery, but in Kona I have no
way to practice special only for surgery, so have to take
general family practice also.

JITCHAKU: How long have you been here in Kona, Dr. Cheng?
CHENG: Three years.
JITCHAKU: Okay, I'm not familiar with Kona and its general

practitioners, so I'm going to ask you some questions because
I don't live in the area. Do you know of any physicians or
doctors that live within the area or all the doctors located
in Kailua?

CHENG: I know every doctor in the area because we have
staff meeting, every month meeting.

JITCHAKU: So you feel the need is there, that's why you plan
to have your office in a residential lot?

CHENG: The location was between two groups - the Kona
Coast and the Kona Medical - and it's in the center of West
Hawaii, so it's completely independent and it has no, anything
to bother other doctors.

JITCHAKU: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Nakano.
NAKANO: You are a surgeon too from the report that you

have here. Where do you intend to do your surgery, at the
general hospital in Kona?

CHENG: The surgery mainly too is hospital. There is no
surgery done in office except in minor surgery. Surgery mainly
a hospital practice type of doctor. The office is mainly just
for followup. But I can take care family care because that's
what to do.

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Commissioners, any further guestions
of Dr. Cheng?

HAYASHI: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes.

HAYASHI: I think it's still unclear at this time as to what

this Special Permit is for, whether it's for a medical office,

two medical offices, a pharmacy, or lawyer's office. I think

that should be determined inasmuch as you'll be granting or denying
a permit based on the specific use.

CHAIRMAN: Dr. Cheng, staff is recommending to Commission that
the second area that you show as an office that we are able at
this time to determine what its use is going to be so that we

can proceed with the processing of your application.

CHENG: My main concern is that to make a medical office,
other than that I don't really concerned.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, so the second office that you're showing
right now, could you tell us what kind of use you would use?



CHENG: Most likely it will be another doctor's office
and that's all.

CHAIMRAN: So what your testimony then is that the additional,
how many feet was it, Ilima?

PIIANAIA: Twelve hundred feet.

CHAIRMAN: The additional 1200 feet some time in the future
would be used as a second doctor's office?

CHENG: Yes,

CHAIRMAN: Okay, and not a pharmacy or not any other profes-

sional kind of offices?

CHENG: Right because before I didn't have any, about
this never going to be objection about increasing traffic so
I think I go bent my proposed to be a pharmacy. Let them go
all the way down to the town instead of give them the service
closer.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, then your testimony is that the 1200 square
feet that is shown in your application, you would like to have
that included in the Special Permit application for a second
doctor's office?

CHENG: Second doctor's office.
CHAIRMAN: Norman.
HAYASHI: Mr. Chairman, I also have another question for

Dr. Cheng. Dr. Cheng, you had indicated that the reason why

you picked this particular location was that you owned this
particular property and also that as far as location-wise this

is the center of West Hawaii. Have you ever contacted or

looked at other commercially, already zoned areas for establishing
your doctor's office, say in Kainaliu, Honalo or Kailua?

CHENG: I have reserved one lot in Komohama, it's called
Kuakini Village, which I have been waiting for three years has
no moving; and I have no idea how long it going to move. So it
might be indefinite. Then I personally renting the office

that is getting smaller for me expanding because they have more
new equipment that I have been passing all over my office now.

HAYASHI: So what you're saying then, at the present time
there are no available spaces or commercially zoned areas for
the establishment of your particular use?

CHENG: There have no suitable one. In Kona you have
very hard time to find commercial area, there's mostly no
commercial area. You can see from Kailua all the way down to
Kealakekua, I don't see anyone, or you may have one I cannot
afford.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. Staff, any further questions?
If there are none, Dr. Cheng, we do ask that you remain in

the audience. There may be some questions from the public
that we would like to ask you to respond to. May I have an
indication from all of you from the public who wishes to
testify on this application, just by raise of hands? Okay,



would you all at this time stand and we'll swear you in at

one time please. If you'll raise your right hands. Do you

swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth on the applica-
tion now before the Hawaii County Planning Commission?

STERLING: I do.
DELARIES: I do.
KONG: I do.
MANDAWI : I do.
CHAIRMAN: Please be seated. Leon, you're closest to the

microphone. We'll start with you.

STERLING: I'm Leon Sterling and I live on the mauka Keauhou
area just off the so-called 0ld Donkey Mill Road and I'd like

to preface my statement by saying that I participated in the
opening of Dr. Cheng's present office. However, in trying to
get a proper perspective of this, I'd like to look at the whole
area. This is State and this is State. Now because of the
increased traffic, you know, that we're widening the Kuakini
Highway down towards Kailua and there are also priorities on what
we're going to do with the expansion of Kaahumanu Highway,

this application, I think, would have a tremendous effect on

the possibilities of asking the State to widen Mamalahoa. We
have in the mauka part here the so-called 0ld Poi Mill Road

or 0ld Poi Factory Road, all of these parts, where Bishop

Estate is, are now being occupied. So we have an increase traffic
situation here. And there are no vacancies in our area. And
then I also sit on the Board on Bishop Estate, we've negotiated
new leases with these farmers here so there is a definite
increase in traffic along this area. This can be shown I

believe by your local police records in the amount of accidents
on the Mamalahoa Highway in this area. With the school situated
right there and then of course it's an exaggerated example but
during the elections, the voting booth is here, it's very difficult
to travel along this Mamalahoa Highway because of the increased
traffic. This would be my principal objection because of the
priorities that have already been established on the State

to widen Kuakini in this area and the pressure that is now

being put upon the State Department of Transportation to extend
Kaahumanu. I say that if we create this here, this will increase
pressure on the State to probably widen or straighten out
Mamalahoa in this area, cause it is although the traffic may

be considered light as offered by the testimony of the applicant,
the school buses do travel there and this is a very narrow
section with bad curves.

We do have industrial areas makai. Yesterday I was up at the
Ashikawa Building there, the doctors' offices adjacent to the
Kealakekua Post Office, are very well patronized. And I1I'd

have to go along with the staff member's, Mr. Hayashi's, recom-
mendation that there are available commercial spaces. Thank you
very much. If you have any questions, I'll try to answer them.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Sakamoto.
SAKAMOTO: Mr. Sterling, how many miles is your place?
STERLING: I come down the, oh, so-called old Donkey Mill

Road. I don't think, it's within a, it's close, less than a



mile. But we do have an increased traffic problem in this
whole area. In the past few months, we've had a measurable
amount of accidents in this area because of the increased
traffic, as I said because of the opening up of the old p01
factory, all of these lots here are being opened.

CHAIRMAN: Leon, you're not an adjacent property owner there?
STERLING: No, sir, I'm not.

HAYASHI: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Hayashi.

HAYASHI: Just to clarify the record, I did not recommend

that he seek other commercial zoned areas. I just asked him
the question.

STERLING: I agree with you, Mr. Hayashi.
CHAIRMAN: Okay.
STERLING: But I would say from my own particular knowledge

of the area, there are other commercial areas open.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you, Leon. There doesn't appear to
be any questions for you. Next, please. Yes, you may come
forward.

DELAIRES: You need my name?
CHAIRMAN: Yes, please.
DELAIRES: Esther Delaires, Keauhou. (Read and presented

petition on file.)

CHAIRMAN: Mrs. Delaries, the people that have signed this
petition, are they all residents in this immediate area?

DELAIRES: They are with the exception of Virginia Haanio
who is presently building a home there, but she resides in Kailua.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. Commissioners, do you have any
questions you'd like to ask at this time? Staff, do you have
any questions of Ms. Delaries?

PIIANAIA: I think the only question I have is whether the
19 signatures are all separate or whether there are any, for
instance, numbers 3 and 4 are they husband and wife?

DELAIRES: They are 8 or 9 husbands and wives.
PIIANAIA: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you very much. Next please. You

may be seated.

KONG: Yes, I'm Lily Kong and I have a property not

too far away from it, but I'll show you where it is now. That's
my property and I was one of the signers on the petition and

I'm also the district supervisor for the Hawaii HCEOC where at
Keauhou School I have a day care center. That's youngsters from
age 3 years old and this is why the objection. It's a nonprofit
organization anyway, the HCEOC. So right along this corner here,
I'll point it out, it's quite a danger corner. Here, this corner
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here, because as you‘re making the turn coming where Dr. Cheng's
office will be, there's a bend there that you can't see on the
other side where the school is at and it's pretty heavy, and

also for others coming down from my area, from Dr. Kent Nakamaru's,
coming on down to the main highway. So this is the only objection
I have for a doctor's office within this community; and I believe
that everybody, these are all old-timers, they already have their
own family doctors. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Staff?

PIIANAIA: With the Chairman's permission, I'd like to ask
Mrs. Kong just a couple of questions.

CHAIRMAN: Lily, staff has some questions for you. Please
come up to the microphone.

PIIANAIA: How many students or how many participants are
there presently in the day care facility?

KONG: It's 20 to 22 students.

PIIANATIA: And are they bussed there or -=?

KONG: Yes, I have a l5-passenger van that I house them
to and from school every day, excepting Saturdays and Sundays.
PIIANAIA: Okay, what hours are you in operation?

KONG:.' They're there from 8 o'clock in the morning till
3 o'clock in the afternoon.

PIIANAIA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, anyone else any questions for Mrs. Kong?

Thank you, Mrs. Kong. Yes, please come forward and state your
name into the microphone.

MADAWI: Ann Madawi.
CHAIRMAN: Okay, please proceed.
MADAWTI : I'm on the petition also. Dr. Cheng's office

is next to my place and because of the bad road coming up from

my home already and if the traffic is going to get more congested
up there, it's going to be really dangerous because I have children
and I have a neighbor that has children that play around in that
area. And a while back we had incidences of robbery in our area
and I'm afraid that if people are going to be coming up in that
area, I might have to be staying home all the time just watching

my home because there's no wall or anything high enough to prevent
people from just jumping over. So I'm opposed to this also.

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners or staff, do you have any questions
for Mrs. Madawi? Okay, thank you very much. Who's next?

KAHALIONONTI : We have our home too in the area. They park on
our side of our property and they block our property. Now what's
going to happen if more than 20 cars come? They're going to be
parking on our side of the road. And when the buses do come

and drop the children off at 2:30 or 1:30, it's on my place and
there has been incidences where cars don't see the bus stop and
they bang the back of the bus, just about. I guess that's all

I have to say.
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CHAIRMAN: Okay, Commissioners, any questions?

ORITA: Yeah, I have a question. How long have you been
residing in that area? '

KAHALIONONI: Let's see, my husband was born and raised there,
but for several years we've -.

ORITA: And the highway there, what condition is the highway?

KAHALIONONI: Poor. As you come around the corner of the road,
the bend is real bad, and you have holes here and holes there.

ORITA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Galen, you might take notice, note the condition
of the road. I'm sure all of these concerned residents of that
area would appreciate some help from the Department of Public
Works for repair of the road, pukas.

KUBA: The Department does have a plan for improving that
roadway, but unfortunately like most long projects like this one,
there's an acute lack of funds to implement this project.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Galen, what are the plans for improvement?
Is this the straightening of the road, and taking out the bends
or is it just £filling of pukas and doing some resurfacing? What
are the plans for the improvements there?

KUBA: Basically resurfacing, but we will improve only
certain bends. We can't fix all of them cause it is a lengthy
project. It will extend from Palani all the way down to Honalo.

CHAIRMAN: And do you have any idea what the time schedule
is on that? "

KUBA: As far as I know the plans are completed, lack of
funding is what's holding it up.

CHAIRMAN: So the working drawings, everything is all com-
pleted and ready to go, except funding?

KUBA: Right.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you. The Chair at this time would

like to invite anyone else who wishes to testify? Carol, did
you wish to testify?

SASAKI: Yes,
CHAIRMAN: Yes, you may come forward.
SASAKI: My name is Carol Sasaki and I'm a medical recep-

tionist and it seems like it's so much opposed at this time. I
feel that, you know, all the people who are against are not one
of our patients in our office, so they do not realize how our
office is actually runned. Dr. Cheng and I are the only ones
there in the office and we plan to stay that way as long as we
can and as far as our office, we have been running all these
years and we have worked on an appointment only basis although
we do take emergencies if we feel that they can‘'t make it up

to the hospital on time or whatever, but those are allowed under
any office.
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And they are worrying about not enough parking and traffic
congestion maybe like Kona Medical where you see cars all over
the place but they also probably work on appointments; but as
far as we have heard, their appointments are sometimes 2 hours
off, they wait there for hours and can't get in, whereas we

work where they come and they go out, one to one. They come in,
we see them and they go out and the patient comes in and we see
them and they go out again. And where we are at Kuakini Pro-
fessional Plaza, it is already congested there but not only with
our office there, it's all with the other offices there that
there's congestion. So we can only limit one to one which we
have been doing all these years. And the location of the
proposed office, we feel, will suit our needs because we do work
in that way. We do not work like Kona Medical or Kona Coast
Medical. We are very independent. And as far as traffic is
concerned up mauka there I would say it would be like any other
area where the growth of Kona is growing so fast it would be

any place where you put an office, there will be congestion;

and it's not only because of him. It's because of other

areas surrounding it.

And as far as she had said about parking in front her house and
all that, it was because there really was no other place to
park there -,

MADAWI : They still were parked there...{inaudible).

CHAIRMAN: Carol, Carol, excuse me, please. We're interested
not in any problem that Dr. Cheng may have had with somebody

else because of somebody parking there. We're really interested
in your feelings concerning the application, your support of

the application, so as to help the Commission make a judgement

as to what in fact should be changed.

SASAKI: Okay, so I really support his office being in that
area, not because we don't have any patients in that area but
because we can help the other people in the whole Kona area; and
that's all I have to say.

CHAIRMAN : Thank you. Commissioners, did you have any
questions? Okay.

DELAIRES: What about our taxes?

CHAIRMAN: Please be seated. Okay, there was a question

concerning taxes. Staff, can you comment on that at all? Will
there be any change in the tax structure in the residential area?

PIIANATIA: You'll have to realize that that's something which
is under the Department of Taxation that we cannot offer any
comment on actually.

CHAIRMAN : Sidney?

FUKE: ' Mr. Chairman, actually from what little that we

know about the taxation structure, the taxes would be based
primarily on the basis of the potential for your property to

be similarly upgraded. And so if your property is maybe like

zoned residential and your neighbor's property is zoned commercial,
the valuation of your property may be looked at differently by

the Tax Office, as opposed to if your neighbor's property were

also residential. It's my understanding that the Tax Department
looks at also the potential for adjacent properties to be similarly
upgraded and make an assessment. But as the staff had indicated,
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previously we cannot conclusively state that if this medical center
goes where it's proposed whether in fact tomorrow your taxes, your
real property taxes, will automatically inflate.

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Yes.
DELAIRES: Our taxes will go up then?
CHAIRMAN: No, what he's saying is he cannot answer the question.

If you want to ask a question, please come up to the microphone so
we can have this as part of the record.

MADAWI : If he does put his office up, is he going to provide
fences between my land, boundary, so that people won't jump over
and get into our property?

CHAIRMAN: Okay, if you'll please be seated. Dr. Cheng,
there is a rendering of the type of building that you propose

to construct on your land. Would you tell us a little bit

about the building and landscaping program that you have in mind
for that building?

CHENG: I feel we'll do the best to improve the area and
the worry about the people will jump over this property, I think
that thing nobody can prevent but I will make the best fence,
either plant a tree and then cover, make the area pretty much
defined and as what I say before I make the place completely
independent. I will not allow anyone to park next door parking
place because at that time this is not even open yet. I have
provided almost 1/3 of area for parking so this should be no
problem for them to park outside on parking area. And yet if

the time goes on, entire area in the front also can be locked
into parking area, but if needed. If not needed, we will make

it as a garden and make it nice and make it beautiful. So I
don't feel that their objection is wrong, but it is a good point
for us to still mention and make more improvements and also point
out the traffic that has been growing is the road condition. But
I don't feel it's because of me, if increasing the traffic, because
I don't have that much magic to increasing the traffic that way.
But as the general population increases, the traffic improve,
that is not under my control.

CHAIRMAN: Staff, how many parking stalls would a medical
office for one or two physicians be required?

PIIANAIA: Okay, for a physician, a doctor or a dentist,
the requirement is 4 stalls for each doctor or dentist. Basically,
it'll be 8 stalls for two doctors.

CHAIRMAN: So if Doctor Cheng's application were for two
medical offices, he would be required to have 8 stalls?
PIIANAIA: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: And he is proposing 20 stalls right now?
PIIANAIA: Right. The maximum requirement would be 8 stalls

if there were two medical practitioners plus for the dwelling, so
it'll probably be a minimum of 9 stalls. So he's way in excess
of what's required.

CHAIRMAN: So he has almost two times the number of required
parking stalls?
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PIIANAIA: The minimum requirement, yes.

CHAIRMAN: Yes. Now, Dr. Cheng, did I hear you correctly
that it is your intention to building the facility that's shown
up on the wall, that you also plan to build a garden on the
rest of the property? You have a beautification plan to go
along with this?

o
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CHENG: No, the thing is at the present time I will try
to make as beautiful as can but in case need more parking I will
sacrifice place for parking. So I will prove one thing - that

I don't use other place purposely for parking.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, we understand that Dr. Cheng; and staff has
already said that you have two times as much parking right now
than you are required. So it's not a question of needing more
space for parking. You're showing adequate, you have adequate
parking that's being shown on your proposed plans. So if you did
not need additional parking, then you would landscape that area?
Is that what your intention would be?

CHENG: Yes.
CHAIRMAN: Yes. Okay. Staff?
PIIANAIA: Although Dr. Cheng says 20 parking stalls, if

this application were approved and when it came into the office
then we would sit down and actually determine how many he could
get on the property. He has shown 20, that does not necessarily
mean that we would approve any plan as shown for the parking
layout.

CHAIRMAN: It'll be at plan approval time?
PIIANAIA: Yes. |
CHAIRMAN : Okay, Commissioners, do you have any further ques-

tions of either Dr. Cheng, or any of the people who have testified
this morning?

PARIS: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Paris.

PARIS: I have a question for the Doctor.

CHAIRMAN: Yes. Dr. Cheng, would you come to the microphone.

Commissioner Paris would like to ask you a question.

PARIS: Dr. Cheng, how many emergency patients besides
your appointment patients do you receive during the process of
a day, I mean on an average?

CHENG: At the present I see about 16 patients a day; and
it means 8 patients in the morning and 8 patients in the afternoon.

So about 4 will be add on as emergency comes supposedly, so I
run up to 12 patients in the morning the maximum.

PARIS: And in the afternoon none?

CHENG : Afternoon is supposed I have that much emergencies
about 4 more so would be about 20, 24 in total for the whole day.
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PARIS: So that is 24 patients during the process of a day?

CHENG: Yes, at the maximum patients and during a 7 hour
period.

PARIS: And your other associate who would come in, another
doctor, whether he was associated with you or an individual r~

\

basis, his load you think would be about the same?

CHENG: If he has about the same as me as the maximum it
will be about 10.

PARIS: So we're probably speaking about a maximum of

50 cars during a day if everybody came in one vehicle? I'm

just trying to figure that out because I think if we go back

in history a little bit to Keauhou, you know, until the mid-1960's
that was the only highway serving South Kona from Kailua. Kuakini
Highway ended at Keauhou School and that was it, every car went
by. You remember the load then and I know what an inconvenience
it was to you then. At one time the post office was directly
across the street from this facility, so we looked back and then
we had everybody in that area running to the post office, and
when the school was there we had people in the morning and people
in the afternoon. My child went to Keauhou Kindergarten so

we dropped her off and picked her up twice a day. So these 48

or 50 cars will nowhere come close to the traffic that that

area has been associated with. However, if the majority of

the people feel that they'd rather have the convenience of no
traffic at all as compared to a medical facility I speak from

past experience when I was manager of Puuwaawaa Ranch for 3 1/2
years and I was raising my children there. At 1 or 2 o'clock

in the morning you have an emergency. Even though Dr. Mar was

not my doctor at that time, most of the times I would go to him

in the middle of the night to patch them up or something and it's
a wonderful convenience, I feel, when a doctor lives in the same
area as your place for emergency things such as this. I think

we have to look at this too. But however if the majority feels
that they don't want it, I will have to go along with the majority.
Thank you.

PIIANAIA: We'd like to ask Dr. Cheng one more question if
it's all right with the Chairman.

CHAIRMAN: Yes, please, Dr. Cheng. Staff would like to
ask you another question.

PIIANAIA: Dr. Cheng, going back to having two office spaces
on the ground floor of the proposed structre, is there any reason
why you need to have two office spaces? 1Is it possible for you
to have a single office in that area?

CHENG: In my mind, all intention is good intention because
nobody is machine, cannot work 24 hours, 7 days a week. So if going
to provide good service, it always good to have another one like

a spare tire vehicle, that way. Like your car always getting spare
tire. So that is in mind that I have other doctor who willing

to work with me and we can provide it, whatever the need arise,

and which can be just for time for a while yet.

PIIANAIA: There is, however, nothing that would prevent you
from operating singly?

CHENG: No, it will not prevent my type of operation.

-
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PIIANAIA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, do you have any further questions
you'd like to ask Dr. Cheng? No. Yes, Dr. Cheng.

CHENG: Yes, I understand Mr. Paris because I do really

feel if I am lucky enough my doctor next to me.

FUKE: Mr. Chairman, if I may, I'd like to just clarify

the statement about taxation.

CHAIRMAN: Yes.,

FUKE: The way the values are assessed, I mean your properties

are based upon two factors. One is like whether your properties are
zoned commercial, industrial or residential. They have certain rates
for, they have different rates for different categories. The second
one is how valuable is your property. In other words, the assessed
valuation of your property. If for example your property is worth
$20,000 and you would be taxed based upon the appraised or the
assessed valuation of $20,000 times that rate. Now if for example
you put in a new structure on such as the proposed medical facility
then obviously on that particular property the valuation of that
property would increase. But whether you as an adjacent property
owner, your value would increase, that we don't know right now.

That determination would have to be made by the Department of
Taxation. But we would know very definitely that if the permit

is issued for this property, that Mr. Cheng's property, his
valuation would increase; but we don't know whether the valuation

or as a matter of fact might even decrease. We don't know.

CHENG: I had to fight for increasing my property, how
they don't need to fight for increasing property and they're
getting increased. That is to their benefit instead of their
disadvantage.

CHAIRMAN: Okay, Dr. Cheng, let me recap where I think we

are now. Your testimony is that you wish to build a combination
residence and medical facility on your property, that you basically
practice four days a week, you practice on Monday, Tuesday, Thursday,
Friday, and Saturday. Five days a week?

CHENG: Saturday we usually are closed alternate weeks and
we open half day alternate weeks to get the paperwork done.

CHAIRMAN: I see. Okay, and that your patients are scheduled
on -,

CHENG: And I usually answer the emergencies 24 hours, 7
days a week if my patients need it.

CHAIRMAN: Right.

CHENG: ' And your patients are scheduled at regular intervals

so that you don't have a whole lot of people coming to your office
and waiting around. So it is your testimony then that you do not
think that you will substantially increase the traffic in that
area?

CHENG: I do believe I will not be increasing the traffic

because of the doctor office is there. Because four cars run
through the area for the hours is comparatively minor.
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CHAIRMAN: Okay, thank you very much. If there are no further
questions of either the applicant or the staff, the Chair at this
time will entertain a motion either to contlnue the public hearlng
or to close the public hearing.

SAKAMOTO: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN: Yes, Commissioner Sakamoto.

SAKAMOTO: I make a motion to close the public hearing.
PARIS: Second the motion, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN: It has been moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and

seconded by Commissioner Paris that the public hearing on the
application of Dr. Minolu R. Cheng be closed. All those in
favor so signify by saying aye?

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.
CHAIRMAN: Oppose, same sign? The public hearing is closed.
The public hearing adjourned at 11:31 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

“l&&unv Yh, YIOwuﬁbﬂ\\

Sharon M. Nomura
Secretary

ATTEST:

Ghse.

William F. Mielcke
Chairman, Planning Commission

oy



Dr. Minolu Cheng, M. D.

B,

O. Box 879

Kailua~Kona, HI 96740

Bea¥ Dr. Cheng:

earlier

lgv

cC

liovember 17, 1978

Special Permit Application
Tax Map Key 7-8-07:32

The Planning Commission at its meeting of HNovember 16, 1978,
held a duly advertised public hearing on your application for

a special permit to allow the establishment of a medical office
on 0.934 acre of land situated within the State Land Use Rural
District at Keauihou lst, Nerth XKona, Hawaii.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 205~6, hawaili
Revised Statutes, the Commission shall act on such petition not

than fifteen (15) days after the said public hearing.

We shall notify you when the Commission is ready to take
action on your request.

State Land Use Commission
Land Use Division, DPED

Sincerely,

WILLIAM FP. MIELCKE
Chairman, Planning Commission



December 4, 1978

Mr, Minolu Cheng, M.D.
P, OC. Box 879
Kailva-Kona, HI 96740

Dear Mr. Cheng:

Special Permit Application
Tax Map Key 7-=8~07:32

Your application will again be discussed on Thursday,
Decenber 14, 1978, by the Planning Commission. The meeting
will be held in the First Hawaiian Bank lMeeting Room, Xailua,
North Kona, Hawaii, and is scheduled to begin at 11:00 a.m.

You will be notified of the Commission's decision.

A copy of the agenda is enclosed for your information.

\

5ncercly,
f"\ (}u(\' \/\ Q‘\%\S’:}z‘#

Sidney M. Fuk
Planning Director

smn
Enclosure

cc: State Land Use Commission
Land Use Division, DPED

CLOIBIT X et



November 14, 1978

County Planning Commission
County of Hawaii

25 Aupuni

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

Dear Commissioners:

We, the undersigned strongly object to the request by Minolu R.
Cheng for a special permit application to establish a medical office within
our residential area. We feel that such a request, if granted, will place
a great hardship'upon the people of this quiet neighborhood. There will
undoubtedly be more traffic in an already conjested area. The creation of
a business enterprise in this area cannot help but contribute to more noise
and people conjestion. Then too, we feel that our property taxes will

necessarily escalate in the near future,

Furthermore, to allow a commercial-type establishment within our
residential area under a special permit application will obviously change
the complex of our neighborhood, thus setting the stage for possible future
development, that which we who have lived in this rural setting do not want
at all.

It is our belief that although another medical center could be of
benefit to the Kona community, the selection of our residential and rural

arca is definitely the wrong place and location.

Ve, therefore, petition the County Planning Commissioners to deny

the applcation.
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November 9, 1978

Mr. Sidney Fuke, Director
Planning Department
County of Hawaii

Aupuni Street

Hilo, Hawaii 96720

RE: Special Permit Application
Keauhou 1lst., North Kona, Hawaii
Tax Map Key: 7-8-07:132

Dear Sir,

As owner and,resident of the adjoining lot, Tax Map
Key: 7—8—07:55, I submit herewith, my objection to the
establishment of a medical office on the above parcel
of land. I believe it will create an incentive for
other businesses to locate in this vicinity.

It was not too many years ago, when another doctor
proposed a medical office on TMK: 7-8-06:9 and was
turned down by your Department.

I would like to have the area remain as is, in agriculture
and residential.

%Rurs very truly,

Qa1 Mot

Nd¥@1 N.” Matsuoka
N




November 17, 1978

Ms. Naomi N. Matsuoka
RR 1, Box 234
Holualoca, HI 96728

Dear Ms. Matsuoka:
“Special Permit Application-Medical Office

Dr. Minolu R, Cheng
TMK: 7=8=07:32

This is to acknowledge receipt of your letter dated November
9, 1978, concerning the subject application. Your letter was read
into the record at the public hearing. The Planning Commission
voted to close the public hearing. Under the Commission's rules
relating to Special Permit procedures, there is a mandatory waiting
period of fifteen {15) day after the close of the PH before the
Commission may take action on the application.

Thank you for taking the time to make your concerns Kknown.

Sincerely,
oy e o
-~ . B . TN
Nt = .. ; Y \‘r-t“’{.d
SIDNEY FUKEL)
Director
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SPECIAL PERMIT: MINOLU R. CHENG

Dr. Minolu R, Cheng has submitted an application for a
Special Permit to allow the establishment of a medical office
on 0.934 acres of land situated within the State Land Use
Rural District. The area under consideration is situated
between Kuakini Highway and the'old Mamalahoa Highway, approxi-
mately 400 feet south of the Keauhou School site, Keauhou 1lst,
North Kona (TMK: 7-8-7:32).

The proposed medical office would be located on the ground
floor of a proposed two-story structure. The upper story would
be used by the petitioner as his residence. Each floor would
have an area of 2,800 square feet. According to plans sub-
mitted, the ground floor would have a doctor's office, a recep-
tion and waiting area, exXamining rooms, a guest room, restrooms,
and a 1,200 square foot area designated as additional profes-
sional office space. The second floor living area would consist
of two bedrooms, a den, a living room, a dining room, a kitchen,
a laundry room and two bathrooms. The plans also show that
twenty (20) parking stalls would be provided.

In support of the subject request, the petitioner has, in

part, stated the following:

03]

"This location is in the center of West Hawaii and
right on the Keauhou Scenic Point overlooking the beautiful
Koha Surf Hotel and Keauhou Country Club & Golf Course. o « »
"Presently, the land zone is residential and agricultural.
There is an old house being torn down and getting ready for

a new one.



"The land is not contradictious to the land use law
and regulation as the building is going to be a medical
office. The building will benefit most of the surrounding
properties and the entire community as well. There will
be no unreasonable burden to public agencies to provide
any other than the pre-existing Kuakini Highway as an
entrance for emergency use and no exit to the Kuakini High-
way as planned. No sewers, water, drainage, school improve-
ment, police and fire protection is needed other than pre-
existing. There are no unusual conditions, trends and needs
that will effect the district boundaries and regulations.

"The proposed use will not substantially alter or change
the essential character of the land as we will make use of
the highest point and not alter the basic character of the
land. The proposed use of the land definitely involves public
welfare as it is going to serve the people in the community
as well as persons other than in the community, such as the
tourists."”

"At the present time, my proposed office will be having
only one doctor and one associated personnel. As for future
development, on the proposed plan, a proposed pharmacy or
another professional office (for example: Lawyer, Accountant,
or another physician) is being considered on office #2. o .« o

"My practice will be Acute Family Care and General
Suggery which will benefit most of the trauma cases in the
area.

"Only limited office laboratory work will be performed



and I will not have a complete commercial type of laboratory
set up.
"The second floor of my proposed office building will

be used for .a residence as per plan submitted,"

Access to the subject property would be directly off of the
old Mamalahoa Highway. The plans submitted also show an emergency
entrance from Kuakini Highway. The old Mamalahoa Highway has a
right-of-way which varies between thirty (30) and fifty (50) feet.
It has an 18 to 20-foot pavement width.

The subject property is zcned Residential Agricultural - one-
half acre (RA-.5a) by the County. The General Plan Land Use Pat-
tern Allocation Guide Map designation is low density urban. This
designation may allow single family dwellings at a maximum density
of four units per acre as well as ancillary community and public
facilities.

The soils of the subject property are of the Honuaulu series
which consists of well drained, silty clay loams that formed in
volcanic ash. A representative profile has a surface layer of
very dark silty clay loam about 9 inches thick, while the subsoil
is dark brown cobbkhly and stony silty clay loam about 28 inches.
The substratum is ‘'a'a lava. Permeability is rapid, runoff is
slow and the erosion hazard is slight.

The Land Study Bureau's overall capability rating of the
subject .area is C or Fair.

Upon review of the subject reguest, the State Department of
Transportatien, Land Transvortation Facilities Division stated the

following:



"We have no objections on the proposed action but
no access shall be permitted off the Hawaii Belt Road. . .
(i.e., Kuakini Highway). The parcel does not have any

access rights off the Hawaii Belt Road."

The Department of Public Works stated that "The construction
of this office would increase traffic to the Mamalahoa Highway
which is in poor condition."

The Department of Water Supply commented that:

"Based on the floor layout of the subject medical
office, it appears that water usage for this facility

should be no greater than that required for normal single-

family dwelling.

"There is an 8 inch waterline along Mamalahoa Highway
that will be able to service this facility."

The Fire Department had no objections to the subject request
and noted that fire protection is provided by the Kailua and
Captain Cook fire stations and that there are fire hydrants on
the Mamalahoa Highway.

The Department of Health deferred comments until "Our field
staff investigateséfround water concerns relative to the Kahaluu
Shaft."

None of the other cooperating agencies had any comments on
or objections to the subject request.

Surrounding land uses include vacant areas, single family

dwellings, a quarry and diversified agricultural activities.



RECOMMENDATION: MINOLU R. CHENG, M.D.

Upon careful review of the subject request, staff recommends
that it be given a favorable recommendation based on the following

considerations:

That the proposed use shall ncoct be contrary to the
objectives sought to be accomplished by the Land Use Law
and Regulations. The objectives of the Land Use Law and
Regulations are to preserve, protect and encourage the
development of lands in the State for those uses to which
these lands are best suited in the interest of the public
health and welfare of the people of the State of Hawaii.
The subject property is within the State Land Use Rural
district. Areas within this district consist of small
farms and/or low density residential uses where "city-like"
concentrations of people, structures, streets, and urban
level of services are absent, and where small farms are
intermixed with the low density residential lots. Keauhou
village, which encompasses the subject property, includes
single family dwellings, agricultural activities, a store,

service station, and the old Keauhou School site.

The proposed medical facility will be small in scale,
designed in keeping with the low density character of the
area, and will provide a necessary service to the community.

Medical health services are an essential part of community

vﬁ
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life and its ready availability to the residents in the
area 1s especially valuable in treating emergency situations.
Thus, the proposed medical facility can become an integral
part of the rural community. Further, the proposed medical
facility also includes a residential unit for the use of
the petitioner. The petitioner, in essence, proposes to
establish a residential-medical or a "live-in" doctor
situation. This combination will assure that activities
on the subject property will be conducted in such a manner
as to be consistent with the residential character of the
area. Based on the nature and scale of the proposed
development it is determined that it will be ancillary

to community needs, compatible with the rural character

of the area, and therefore consistent with the intent of

the State Land Use Rural designation for Keauhou Village.

That the proposed use will not unreasonably burden
public agencies in providing publié utilities and facil-
ities. All essential utilities are available to the
subject property. Access to the subject property would
be via the Mamalahoa Highway which connects with Kuakini
Highway approximately 1,000 feet north of the subject
area. In this vicinity, Mamalahoa Highway has a variable
pavement width of 18 to 20 feet. The pavement is currently
in poor condition. However, the portion of the Mamalahoa

Highway fronting the subject property to the intersection



with Kuakini Highway has been programmed for resurfacing
next year. Given the planned improvement of Mamalahoa
Highway, its relatively uncongested traffic condition, and
the small scale of the pfoposed use, it is not anticipated
that the approval of the subject request will create
traffic problems in this area. Further, as access to

the property will be limited to the Mamalahoa Highway
only, the approval of the subject request should not

adversely affect Kuakini Highway.

That the propcsed use is not anticipated to adversely
affect surrounding properties. Due to the relatively
small size and character of the proposed medical facility,
it is not anticipated to generate unusual amounts of
traffic, ncocise or visual intrusion. Through conditions of
approval measures may be imposed to further minimize these

potential impacts.

It is further recommended that the Special Permit be given

favorable consideration subject to the following conditions:

Lo The use of the medical facility shall be limited to
one (1) doctor and his or her staff, and one (1)

dwelling unit.



That the residential unit can only be occupied

by the doctor utilizing the medical facility.

That a minimum of fifteen (15) parking stalls shall

be provided on-site.

That the design of any and all structures shall be
consistent with the rural-residential character of

the area.

That no direct access off Kuakini Highway shall be

permitted. All access shall be off the Mamalahoa

Highway.

That the plan approval process shall be complied with.
The petitioner, or his authorized representative,
shall submit plans for plan approval within one (1)
year from the effective date of the Special Permit.
Construction shall commence within one (1) year from
the receipt of final plan approval and shall be com-

pleted within two (2) years thereafter.

That the Special Permit shall be recorded in the
Bureau of Conveyances within 60 days of its effective

date.



- .

8- Should the use of the property change from the proposed
medical-residential use, the Special Permit shall auto-

matically become null and void.

9 . That all other applicable rules, regulations and require-

ments shall be complied with.

Should any of the foregoing conditions not be met the Special

Permit may be deemed null and void.
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RECORD OF VOTING '
PLANNING COMMISSION
County of Hawaii

Date Decemher 141078

Petitioner MINOLU CHENG - Special Permit

Preliminary hearing ___ Public hearing
ACTION: __iéiﬁpprove
Deny
Defer

Continue

Schedule for public hearing

Request " aActi

Other:

Commissioners Aye No | Excused Abstain
FUJIMOTO, Shigeru vk
HANLEY, J. VWalsh v’
JITCHAKU, Lorraine R. 2nD o
MURAKAMI, Haruo v
NAKANO, Bert H. y/
ORITA,'Alfredo V/
PARIS, William Jr. oF 4
SAKAMOTO, Charles M s v’
MIELCKE, William F. v




PLANNING COMMISSIUN

Planning Department
County of Hawaii

MINUTES
December 14, 197¢

The Planning Commission wet in regulazr sessicn at 9:00 a.m., in
the First Hawaiian Bank lieeting Room,  ailua, North Kona, Hawaii,
and 2:57 p.m. at Kealakele School Cafetorium, Kealakehe, North
Kona, Hawaii, with Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding.

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT : Ex-officio Member
J. Walsh Hanley Akira Fujimoto
Shigeru Fujimoto
Lorraine R. Jitchaku
Haruo Murakami
Bert H. Nakanc
Alfredo Orita
William J. Paris, Jr. (Left at 9:50 a.m.,
returned at 11:20 a.m.)
Charles H. Sakamoto (Left at 4:38 p.m.)

Sidney M. Fuke, Director

Ilima Piilanaia, Planner

Keith ¥ato, Planner

Gerald Hay, Planner (Left at 1:30 p.m.)

Norman Hayashi, Planner (From 10:00 a.m. and left
at 11:58 a.m.)

Royden Yamasato, Planner (From 10:00 a.m. and
left at 1:3C p.m.)

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward
Harada

and approximately 14 people in attendance at 9:00 a.m.,
26 people at: 10:43 a.m., 34 people at 11:00 a.m.,

12 people at. 11:45 a.m., 4 people at 12:22 p.m., 6 people

at 2:57 p.m., and 10 people at 3:35 p.m.

REPORTS : Nomination Committee headed by Commissioner
Sakamoto presented the slate with William F. Mielcke as chairman
and Walsh Hanley as vice chairman. Commissioner Paris moved and
Commissioner Jitchaku seconded that the nominations be closed,
moticn carried.

At this time, Planning Director Fuke advised that the Planning
Department together with Corporation Counsel is also preparing
our own findings of fact and conclusions of law; so deferred
making any comment on Steven Morse's proposed findings as sub-
mitted by GEDCO.

RECESS: The Chair called & recess at 9:07 a.m.
RECONVENED : The meeting reconvaned a: 9:11 a.m.
Commissioner Fujimoto made a motion to reconsider the Joan Aanavi
action for approval, and seconded by Commissioner Sakamoto; motion
carried. Commissioner Sakamoto then moved and Commissioner Paris

seconded' that the Aanavi application ke defered until such time
as all parties who testified can be nctifed; motion carried

with six ayes and three noes.
EXHIBIT HH
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SPECIAL PERMIT Application of State of Hawaii Department of
STATE DEPARTMENT Education for a Special Permit to allow the con-
OF EDUCATION tinued use of three sites situated within the
KE'EI AND KAUHAKO, State Land Use Agricultural District for public
SOUTH KONA; & educational purposes. The sites involved are:

PAHOA, NORTH KOHALA a) Honaunau School, Ke'ei 2nd, South Kona, TMK:

8-3-13:21; b) Ho'okena School, Kauhako, South
Kona, TMK: 8-6-10:9 & 12; c¢) Kohala School, Pahoa, North Kohala,
TMK: 5-5-8:24 & 42.

Staff presented recommendation on file.

Commissioner Sakamoto moved and Commissioner Orita seconded that the
Commission send a favorable recommendation to the State Land Use
Commission for the reascns and with the conditions outlined by the
staff. A roll call vote was taken and motion carried with nine ayes.

RECESS: The Chair called a recess at 12:03 p.m.
RECONVENED: The meeting reconvened at 12:09 p.m.

AMENDMENT TO Application of Linco Construction Co., Inc. to
PDP NO. 8 amer.d Planned Development Permit No. 8 which
LINCO CONSTRUCTION allcwed the submission of plans for a 230-unit
C@., INC. condominium project for plan approval. The
WAIKOLOA, SOUTH amer.dment is to reduce the number of units to
KOHALA 124 to be contained within 12 structures in lieu

of the 11 structures originally planned. Also
requested is a one-year time extension until December 6, 1979, to
allow the submission of plans for plan approval. The area involved
is located along the west side of Lua-Kula Street, approximately
600 feet south of the Lua-Kula Street - Laie Street intersection,
Waikoloa Village, Waikoloa, South Kohala, TMK: 6-8-03:11.

Staff presented recommendation on file.

It was moved by Commissioner Nakano and seconded